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Report on the audit of the  
financial statements 

Opinion 

In our opinion: 

 the financial statements of Spirit Energy Limited (the 
‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) give a 
true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the 
parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of 
the Group’s loss for the year then ended;  

 the Group financial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union and IFRSs as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB);  

 the parent company financial statements have been 
properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including 
Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure 
Framework”; and 

 the financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2006. 

We have audited the financial statements which comprise: 

 the consolidated income statement; 

 the consolidated statement of comprehensive (loss)/ 
income; 

 the consolidated and parent company balance sheets; 

 the consolidated and parent company statements of 
changes in equity; 

 the consolidated cash flow statement; and 

 the related notes 1 to S7 to the consolidated financial 
statements and notes A to I to the parent company 
financial statements. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by 
the European Union and, as applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in the 
preparation of the parent company financial statements is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced 
Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (‘ISAs (UK’) and applicable law. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the 
following matters where: 

 the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 

 the Directors have not disclosed in the financial 
statements any identified material uncertainties that 
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s or the 
parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least 
twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.  

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
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Other information 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except 
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Responsibilities of Directors 

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities 
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors 
either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company 
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the  
financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at: 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description 
forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course 
of the audit: 

 the information given in the strategic report and the 
Directors’ report for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with  
the financial statements; and 

 the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been 
prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group 
and of the parent company and their environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material 
misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ 
report. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Matters on which we are required to report 
by exception 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 
in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the 
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have 
not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the parent company financial statements are not in 
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified 
by law are not made; or 

 we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members,  
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the Company’s members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,  
or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

Graham Hollis ACA (Senior statutory auditor) 
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Statutory Auditor 
Aberdeen, UK 
27 May 2020
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Year ended 31 December Note 

2019 
 

£m 

2018 
(restated)(i) 

£m 

Revenue 5 1,431 1,978 

Cost of sales 6a (1,192) (1,226) 

Re-measurement of energy contracts 6b 342 (129) 

Gross profit  581 623 

Operating costs 6a (180) (202) 

Exceptional items 7a (516) 91 

Operating (loss)/profit  (115) 512 

Financing costs 8 (46) (42) 

Investment income 8 5 15 

(Loss)/profit before taxation  (156) 485 

Taxation on (loss)/profit 9 (115) (294) 

(Loss)/profit for the year  (271) 191 
(i) The Group has amended the presentation of energy derivative contracts following an IFRIC agenda decision in March 2019 and a review of its trading businesses. Prior year results have been 

restated accordingly. See note 1 for further details. 

The results in the above Consolidated Income Statement relate to continuing operations. 

The notes on pages 31 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Year ended 31 December  Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

(Loss)/profit for the year   (271) 191 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year:     

Items that will be or have been reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement:   

Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of foreign operations  S4 (49) 2 

Net (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges  S4 (1) 1 

Taxation on cash flow hedges  S4 1 – 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of taxation (49) 3 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year   (320) 194 

The notes on pages 31 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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As at 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Non-current assets    

Goodwill 13 480  497 

Other intangible assets 13 200  189 

Property, plant and equipment 12 2,428 3,343 

Derivative financial instruments 17 22  13 

Deferred tax assets 14 402  593 

Trade and other receivables 15 84  113 

  3,616 4,748 

Current assets    

Inventories 16 87  87 

Trade and other receivables 15 380  397 

Derivative financial instruments 17 160  26 

Current tax assets  70  97 

Assets held for sale 11 12 – 

Cash and cash equivalents 22 361  639 

  1,070 1,246 

Total assets  4,686 5,994 
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As at 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 18 (378) (429) 

Current tax liabilities  (197) (251) 

Lease liabilities  22 (23) (11) 

Derivative financial instruments 17 (9) (50) 

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 19 (132) (167) 

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 11 (6) – 

  (745) (908) 

Non-current liabilities    

Deferred tax liabilities 14 (131) (277) 

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 19 (1,787) (2,096) 

Lease liabilities 22 (63) – 

Derivative financial instruments 17 (1) (12) 

Trade and other payables 18 (87) (105) 

  (2,069) (2,490) 

Total liabilities  (2,814) (3,398) 

Net assets  1,872  2,596 

Equity    

Share capital 23 19 19 

Share premium 24 1,094 2,594 

Retained losses  (866)  (1,700) 

Other equity S4 1,625 1,683 

Shareholders’ equity  1,872 2,596 

The Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 25 to 78, of which the notes on pages 31 to 78 form part, were approved and 
authorised by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2020 and were signed below on its behalf by: 

 

 

Chris Cox 
Director and Chief Executive Officer 
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The notes on pages 31 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

 Note 
Share capital 

£m 
Share premium 

£m 
Retained losses 

£m 
Other equity 

£m 
Total 

£m 

1 January 2018  19 3,594 (2,891) 1,615 2,337 

Profit for the year  – – 191 – 191 

Other comprehensive income for the year S4 – – – 3 3 

Total comprehensive profit for the year  – – 191 3 194 

Acquisition of business S4 – – – 65 65 
Reduction in share premium and transfer 
to retained losses 24 – (1,000) 1,000 – – 

31 December 2018  19 2,594 (1,700) 1,683 2,596 

Loss for the year  – – (271) – (271) 

Other comprehensive loss for the year S4 – – – (49) (49) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  – – (271) (49) (320) 
Reduction in share premium and transfer 
to retained losses 24 – (1,500) 1,500 – – 

Dividends paid to equity holders  10 – – (400) – (400) 

Employee share schemes S4 – – 5 (9) (4) 

31 December 2019  19 1,094 (866) 1,625 1,872 
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Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Operating (loss)/profit  (115) 512 

Add back/(deduct):    

Depreciation, amortisation, write-downs and impairments of fixed assets 12a, 13a 1,210 530 

Profit on disposals  (6) (3) 

Decrease in provisions  (164) (164) 

Unrealised (gain)/loss arising from re-measurement of energy contracts  7b (194) 5 

Operating cash before movements in working capital  731 880 

Increase in inventories  (3) (14) 

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables   (11) 37 

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables   (60) 57 

Cash generated by operations  657 960 

Taxes paid  (110) (47) 

Payments relating to exceptional charges  (3) (19) 

Operating interest received  1 – 

Net cash from operating activities   545 894 

Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired  – 31 

Proceeds from the sale of assets  33 1 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (470) (470) 

Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  6 – 

Investing interest received  3 2 

Movements in deferred consideration  48 (9) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (380) (445) 

Financing interest and fees paid  (13) (9) 

Equity dividends paid 10 (400) – 

Repayment of related-party borrowings 22e – (106) 

Capital element of finance leases 22e (29) (6) 

Issue of share capital  23 – 16 

Realised net foreign exchange loss on cash settlement of derivative contracts  – (2) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (442) (107) 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (277) 342 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  639 293 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  (1) 4 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22e 361 639 

Included in the following lines of the Consolidated Balance Sheet:    

Cash and cash equivalents  338 590 

Restricted cash within cash and cash equivalents  23 49 

The notes on pages 31 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Spirit Energy is one of Europe’s largest independent oil and 
gas exploration and production companies. Spirit Energy 
Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 6 July 2017. 
It is domiciled and incorporated in the UK and registered 
in England and Wales with registration number 10854461. 
During the year the registered office address changed from 
Millstream Maidenhead Road, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 5GD 
to 1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-Thames, 
England, TW18 4LG. The principal place of business 
remained 1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, England, TW18 4LG throughout the year. 
The Company, together with its subsidiaries as detailed 
in note S7, comprises ‘the Group’. 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, 
SUMMARY OF  
NEW ACCOUNTING  
POLICIES AND  
REPORTING CHANGES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of these Consolidated Financial Statements are set out 
below in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
which focus on areas that are key to understanding the 
business, and in the Supplementary Information (notes S1 to 
S7). Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been 
consistently applied throughout the years presented.  

(a) Basis of preparation 

This document incorporates the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 
2019, prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union 
(EU) and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) Regulation and 
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to 
companies reporting under IFRS, subject to the limitations 
outlined below. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements constitute statutory 
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019 and contain 
all disclosures required by the Companies Act.  

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial 
instruments and commodity inventories which have been 
measured at fair value.  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity  
with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It requires management  
to exercise its judgement in the processes of applying  
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving  
a higher degree of judgement or complexity and areas  
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements are described in  
notes 2 and 3. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis. The Group operates under a 
financial framework to build sustainable long-term cash 
flow underpinning its liquidity requirements and capital 
investments. The Group has significant cash and cash 
equivalents and a £250 million revolving unsecured credit 
facility provided by its Shareholders, which together are 
expected to cover its liquidity requirements. Investments and 
dividends will be managed to ensure that the Group 
maintains a working capital liquidity buffer. In the event of a 
potential liquidity shortfall, the Group can access external 
borrowings and request funding from Shareholders. The 
Board’s consideration of going concern is described in note 
22(b).  

Basis of consolidation 

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are 
presented in pounds sterling. For the purposes of presenting 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, the assets and 
liabilities of the Group’s non-sterling functional currency 
entities are translated into sterling at exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. The results of these 
entities are translated into pounds sterling at the average 
rates of exchange for the relevant period. 
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(b) Standards, amendments and 
interpretations effective or adopted in 2019 

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, 
the following standards and interpretation relevant to the 
Group’s operations were adopted during the year:  

 IFRS 16: ‘Leases’ 

The impact of adoption of this standard and the key changes 
to the accounting policies are disclosed below.  

The following standards and amendments to IFRSs became 
effective for the period beginning on 1 January 2019 and did 
not have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements:  

 IFRIC 23: ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’; and 

 Amendments to IFRS 9: ‘Prepayment features with 
negative compensation’. 

IFRS 16: Leases 

Initial recognition 
The Group has adopted IFRS 16: ‘Leases’ from 1 January 
2019. The application of the standard resulted in a 
significant change in the accounting of lease arrangements 
where the Group is a lessee as the standard requires on 
balance sheet recognition of all lease liabilities and the 
corresponding recognition of a right-of-use (ROU) asset.  

In accordance with the transition provisions of IFRS 16, for 
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the 
requirements of the standard have been applied only to 
contracts previously identified as leases in accordance with 
IAS 17: ‘Leases’ or IFRIC 4: ‘Determining Whether an 
Arrangement Contains a Lease’. For contracts entered or 
modified after 1 January 2019, the definition of a lease in 
IFRS 16 has been applied. On application of IFRS 16 
comparative information has not been restated. 

On transition, the Group measured lease liabilities previously 
accounted for as operating leases at the present value of the 
remaining lease payments. The associated ROU asset was 
measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities and 
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease 
payments. Leases that were previously accounted for as 
finance leases were carried forward as the opening IFRS 16 
balances and then subsequently measured in accordance 
with the new standard. 

The adjustments for the initial recognition of IFRS 16 
resulted in lease liabilities and ROU assets totalling 
£61 million on 1 January 2019. A reconciliation of the 
operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 to the 
opening IFRS 16 lease liability is shown in note 4. £50 million 
of the lease liability is incremental to the IAS 17 position.  

ROU assets are presented in property, plant and equipment 
(PP&E) on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Lease liabilities 
are included in current and non-current lease liabilities.  

Practical expedients and exemptions 
The Group has applied the following practical expedients 
upon initial application, on a lease-by-lease basis: 

 IFRS 16: C10(a) Use of a single discount rate to a 
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar 
characteristics; 

 IFRS 16: C10(b) Reliance on its assessment of whether 
leases are onerous by applying IAS 37 ‘Provisions, 
contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ immediately 
before the date of initial application as an alternative in 
performing and impairment review; 

 IFRS 16: C10(c) Exemption to leases for which the lease 
term ends within 12 months of the date of initial 
application; and 

 IFRS 16: C10(d) Exclusion of initial direct costs from the 
measurement of ROU assets at the date of initial 
application. 

Following the initial application the Group has elected to 
apply the short-term (leases expiring within twelve months 
and commencement) and low-value (underlying asset value 
is less than £5,000) exemptions. In such circumstances, the 
lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Payments for leases used 
directly for the exploration and production of oil and gas are 
recognised as capital expenditure.  

Extensions and terminations 
If an extension or termination option is ‘reasonably certain’  
to be exercised, the termination period or extended period 
will be included or excluded from the lease term when 
calculating the lease liability.  

The Group will reassess the ‘reasonably certain’ criteria 
upon the occurrence of significant event. An event is 
considered significant if it affects whether the Group is 
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously 
included in its determination of the lease term. 
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Joint arrangements 
The Group holds interests in a number of joint 
arrangements. The Group has applied judgement in 
identifying the customer in lease arrangements used by a 
joint arrangement. If the leased asset is dedicated to a 
specific joint arrangement and its usage is directed by the 
joint arrangement, the joint arrangement is deemed the 
customer. In circumstances where the Group has signed the 
lease agreement on behalf of the joint arrangement and has 
primary responsibility for the payments to the lessor, the 
Group will recognise 100% of the lease liability and ROU 
asset on its Balance Sheet. In circumstances where the 
partner is obliged to reimburse the Group for its share of the 
lease payments, a sub-lease receivable will be recognised 
with a corresponding adjustment made to the ROU asset.  

If the leased asset is not dedicated to a specific joint 
arrangement or its usage is not directed by the joint 
arrangement, the signatory of the lease agreement is 
deemed to be customer. If this is the Group, the lease 
liability and ROU asset are recognised in full. If it is the 
partner, no lease liability or ROU asset is recognised.  

The comparative information continues to be reported in 
accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The accounting policies 
applicable for this period are included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. 

Right-of-use (ROU) assets  
The Group recognises a ROU asset and lease liability at the 
date of commencement. The ROU asset is initially measured 
at cost. The cost is made up of the initial lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at commencement 
or prepaid, estimated costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset and estimated costs to restore the 
underlying asset or site on which it is located. In addition, any 
lease incentives received are deducted from the cost. 

The ROU asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
straight-line and unit of production method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the useful life of the 
ROU asset or end of the lease term. The estimated useful 
lives of the ROU assets are determined on the same basis 
as property and equipment. In addition, the ROU asset is 
periodically reduced by any impairment losses and adjusted 
for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.  

Lease Liabilities 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present  
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounting using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease or, if the rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the initial measurement of the 
lease liability comprise of fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate (initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date), amounts 
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, the 
exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is 
reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 
renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise 
an extension option, and penalties for early termination  
of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. Variable lease payments that do not depend 
on an index or rate are recognised in the profit or loss in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers those 
payments occurs. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising 
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the 
Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes  
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,  
lease-term extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount  
of the ROU asset or is recorded in the profit or loss if the 
carrying amount of the ROU asset has been reduced to nil. 

The Group recognises the lease payments associated with 
short-term and low-value leases on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.  

IFRIC 23: Uncertainties over income tax treatments 

IFRIC 23 provides clarification on the requirements for 
measuring and recognising uncertain income tax items.  
It must be applied when determining taxable profit/loss,  
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments 
under IAS 12. The amendment did not have a material 
influence on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2. SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING  
 MEASURES 

  

(c) Standards and amendments that are 
issued but not yet applied by the Group 

Not endorsed by the EU 

The Group has not applied the following standards or 
amendments relevant to the Group’s operations in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as they are not yet 
effective, and they have not yet been endorsed by the EU: 

 Amendment to IFRS 3: ‘Business combinations’, effective 
from 1 January 2020. 

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarifying the definition of a 
business apply to acquisitions on or after 1 January 2020. 
As these types of transactions can vary in size and are non-
recurring in nature, the Group cannot quantify the effect that 
these amendments could potentially have in the future. 

Management does not currently expect the future 
application of the other amendments to have a material 
impact on the amounts reported and disclosed in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(d) Restatements 

In March 2019, the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) issued an agenda decision 
on the Physical Settlement of Contracts to Buy or Sell a non-
Financial Item. It was concluded that, for physical commodity 
trades within the scope of IFRS 9: ‘Financial instruments’, 
entities should not transfer previously recognised, unrealised 
marked-to-market movements to different Income Statement 
line items upon realisation. As the Group previously 
recognised fair value movements on the re-measurement of 
certain energy contracts net within cost of sales up to the 
point of realisation (when the underlying contract would be 
recognised in revenue), presentation of the Group’s revenue 
and re-measurement of energy contracts for the year ended 
31 December 2018 has been amended to comply with the 
requirements of the IFRIC agenda decision. Comparative 
results have been represented with no impact on gross profit. 

The impact of realised and unrealised positions,  
in accordance with IFRS 9, will be reflected in the  
‘Re-measurement of energy contracts’ line in the Income 
Statement. The effect of this re-presentation for 2018  
is an increase in revenue and re-measurement of energy 
contracts of £124 million. 

Exceptional items and re-measurements  
of energy contracts 

To be able to provide readers with clear information 
regarding the business performance of the Group, the 
effects of re-measurements of energy contracts and 
exceptional items are reported separately in the 
Consolidated Income Statement. 

The Group enters into a number of forward energy trades to 
protect and optimise the value of its underlying production. 
These trades are designed to reduce the risk of holding such 
assets and are subject to strict risk limits and controls. 
Primarily, because some of these trades include terms that 
permit net settlement (they are prohibited from being 
designated as ‘own use’), the rules within IFRS 9: ‘Financial 
instruments’ require them to be individually fair valued.  
Fair value movements on these commodity derivative trades 
do not reflect the underlying performance of the business 
because they are economically related to the Group’s 
exploration and production assets which are typically not  
fair valued. Therefore, these re-measurements are reported 
separately and are subsequently reflected in business 
performance when the underlying transaction or asset 
impacts profit or loss. 

The Group’s result for the year presents both realised and 
unrealised fair value movements on all derivative energy 
contracts within the ‘re-measurement of energy contracts’ 
line item. 

Exceptional items are those items that are of a non-
recurring nature and, in the judgement of management, need 
to be disclosed separately by virtue of their nature, size or 
incidence. Again, these exceptional items are reported 
separately in the Consolidated Income Statement in order to 
better reflect the underlying business performance of the 
Group. Items that may be considered exceptional in nature 
include disposal of businesses, business restructurings, 
significant onerous contract charges and asset write-
downs/impairments. 
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(a) Critical judgements in applying 
the Group’s accounting policies  

Such key judgements include the following: 

 the presentation of selected items as exceptional  
(see notes 2 and 7); and 

 the classification of energy procurement  
contracts as derivative financial instruments  
and presentation as re-measurements of  
energy contracts (see notes 2, 7 and 17). 

In addition, management has made the following  
key judgements in applying the Group’s accounting  
policies that have the most significant effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Spirit Energy Limited preference shares 

As part of the acquisition of Spirit Energy Limited, 
preference shares have been issued to GBGH and 
SWM Gasbeteiligungs GmbH. Management have reviewed 
the redemption and conversion rights of the shares and  
have concluded that in each case the redemption is at  
the discretion of the issuer, Spirit Energy Limited. Whilst  
the agreements provide incentives for GBGH to redeem 
these shares through the waiver of its dividend under  
certain circumstances, and the agreements indicate  
an intention to redeem, management have concluded  
that Spirit Energy Limited retains the discretion to avoid 
redemption and therefore the preference shares do not 
represent an obligation.  

Similarly, the conversion rights are at the discretion of  
Spirit Energy Limited and do not create an obligation.  
The preference shares pay a fixed coupon or dividend  
of 5.5% plus a floating element subject to a cap of 1.5%,  
and again despite the agreement stating a dividend  
policy and the intention to pay dividends, these remain  
at the discretion of the Directors of Spirit Energy Limited. 
Accordingly, the preference shares are deemed to represent 
equity rather than a financial liability.  

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Decommissioning costs 

The estimated cost of decommissioning at the end of the 
producing lives of oil and gas fields is reviewed annually  
and is based on reserves, price levels and technology at the 
balance sheet date. Provision is made for the estimated cost 
of decommissioning at the balance sheet date. The payment 
dates of total expected future decommissioning costs are 
uncertain and dependent on the production life of the 
respective field but are currently anticipated to be incurred 
until 2049 (2018: 2040). 

The level of provision held is also sensitive to the discount 
rate used to discount the estimated decommissioning costs. 
The real discount rate used to discount the decommissioning 
liabilities at 31 December 2019 was 1.2% (2018: 1.2%).  
A 1% variation in this discount rate would change the 
decommissioning liabilities by approximately £197 million 
before taxation. 

Gas and liquids reserves 

The volume of proven and probable (2P) gas and liquids 
reserves is an estimate that affects the unit of production 
method of depreciating producing gas and liquids  
PP&E as well as being a significant estimate affecting 
decommissioning and impairment calculations. The factors 
impacting gas and liquids estimates and the process for 
estimating reserve quantities and reserve recognition are 
described on page 87. 

The impact of a change in estimated 2P reserves is dealt with 
prospectively by depreciating the remaining book value of 
producing assets over the expected future production. If 2P 
reserves estimates are revised downwards, earnings could 
be affected by higher depreciation expense or an immediate 
write-down (impairment) of the asset’s book value. 

Determination of fair values – energy derivatives 

Fair values of energy derivatives are estimated by reference 
in part to published price quotations in active markets and in 
part by using valuation techniques. More detail on the 
assumptions used in determining fair valuations of energy 
derivatives is provided in note S3. 
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Impairment of long-lived assets  

The Group has several material long-lived assets, which are 
assessed or tested for impairment at each reporting date in 
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as described 
in note 7. The Group makes judgements and estimates in 
considering whether the carrying amounts of these assets or 
cash generating units (CGUs) are recoverable. The key assets 
that are subjected to impairment tests are exploration, 
development and production gas and oil assets and goodwill, 
as detailed below. 

Exploration, evaluation, development and production 
gas and oil assets 

The recoverable amount of the Group’s gas and oil assets is 
determined by discounting the post-tax cash flows expected 
to be generated by the assets over their lives, taking into 
account those assumptions that market participants would 
take into account when assessing fair value. The cash flows 
are derived from projected production profiles of each field, 
based predominantly on expected 2P reserves and take into 
account forward prices for gas and liquids over the relevant 
period. Where forward market prices are not available, prices 
are determined based on internal model inputs.  

Further details of the assumptions used in determining the 
recoverable amounts, the impairments and the impairment 
reversals booked during the year and the sensitivity to the 
assumptions are provided in note 7. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill does not generate independent cash flows and 
accordingly is allocated at inception to specific CGUs or 
groups of CGUs for impairment testing purposes. The 
recoverable amounts of these CGUs are derived from 
estimates of future cash flows (as described in the asset 
classes above) and hence the goodwill impairment tests are 
also subject to these key estimates.  

Further detail on impairments tests and the assumptions 
used in determining the recoverable amounts is provided in 
notes 7 and 13. 

Uncertain tax provisions 

The Group is subject to taxation in a number of jurisdictions. 
The complexity of applicable rules may result in legitimate 
differences of interpretation between the Group and taxing 
authorities (or between different taxing authorities) 
especially where an economic judgement or valuation is 
involved. Resolution of these differences typically takes 
many years. The uncertain tax provisions represent multiple 
layers of estimation for different time periods and different 
jurisdictions.  

The principal element contributing to these differences is 
transfer pricing challenges in jurisdictions outside the UK. 
While the Group applies the arm’s length principle to all 
intra-group transactions, taking Organisation for Economic 
Co-operation and Development (OECD) guidance into 
account, taxing authorities may take different views. The 
outcome of resolving any disputes is not predictable; the 
provisions represent management’s assessment of the most 
likely outcome of each issue. The assessment is reviewed 
and updated on a regular basis. 

A material portion of the uncertain tax provision arising 
before completion of the transaction to combine Centrica 
plc’s existing exploration and production business with that 
of Bayerngas Norge AS on 8 December 2017 may be 
recoverable from Shareholders, to the extent it was not 
funded at completion. The amount recognised on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019 in 
respect of the uncertain tax provision was £128 million 
(2018: £141 million). 

Brexit  

The Group has considered the potential impact of Brexit as 
noted in the strategic report on page 16. Economists have 
suggested that a failure to agree a satisfactory trade deal 
could lead to lower base interest rates and higher inflation, 
following a likely weakening of sterling against other 
currencies. The sensitivity of a change in forward energy 
prices and the impact this would have on impairment of the 
Group’s assets is disclosed in note 7. Macroeconomic 
impacts on existing trade receivable recoverability are 
expected to be immaterial but could have a greater impact 
on future trade receivable recoverability.
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(a) Adjusted opening balances 

The adjustments to the opening balances are a result of the first-time adoption of IFRS 16: ‘Leases’. In accordance with the 
modified retrospective approach, the prior-period amounts were not adjusted. 

 Note 

2018 
31 December 

£m 

Adjustment  
as a result of  

IFRS 16 
£m 

2019 
1 January 

£m 

Property, plant and equipment 12 3,343 61 3,404 

Lease liabilities 22e (11) (61) (72) 

(b) Reconciliation 

 £m 

Operating lease obligations as at 31 December 2018 71 

Minimum lease payments on finance lease liabilities at 31 December 2018 11 

Relief option under IFRS 16 for short-term leases (30) 

Recognition of lease arrangements within joint operations 22 

Other 2 

Gross lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 76 

Incremental discounting (4) 

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 72 

Present value of finance lease liabilities at 31 December 2018 (11) 

Lease liabilities following initial application of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 61 

The lease liabilities were discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The weighted average discount 
rate was 2%. 
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The principal activities from which the Group derives its revenues are the production and processing of gas and oil. An analysis 
of the Group’s revenue is set out in the table below. 

Year ended 31 December 

2019 
 

£m 

2018 
(restated)(i) 

£m 

IFRS 15 revenue   

Sale of goods:   

Gas 567 783 

Oil and liquids 629 762 

Pipeline tariff revenue 74 64 

Other revenue 30 21 

Total IFRS 15 revenue 1,300 1,630 

   

Non-IFRS 15 revenue   

Sale of goods:   

Gas 131 348 

Total non-IFRS 15 revenue 131 348 

Total revenue 1,431 1,978 

An analysis of revenue by geographical territory, based on the location of the customer, is set out the in the table below. 

Year ended 31 December 

2019 
 

£m 

2018 
(restated)(i) 

£m 

UK 861 1,266 

Norway 323 425 

Switzerland 169 188 

USA 58 31 

Netherlands 15 23 

Rest of the world 5 45 

Total revenue 1,431 1,978 
(i) The Group has amended the presentation of energy derivative contracts within revenue following an IFRIC agenda decision in March 2019. Prior year results have been restated accordingly. 

See note 1 for further details. 
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(a) Analysis of costs by nature 

Year ended 31 December Note 
Cost of sales 

£m 
Operating costs 

£m 

2019 
 

Total costs 
£m 

Costs of sales 
£m 

Operating costs 
£m 

2018 
(restated)(iii) 
Total costs 

£m 

Transportation and distribution costs  (181) – (181) (186) – (186) 

Commodity costs  (32) – (32) (28) – (28) 

Depreciation, amortisation, 
impairments and write-downs  
of fixed assets  (584) (77) (661) (530) (60) (590) 

Employee costs(i)  (24) (73) (97) (20) (76) (96) 

Other direct costs(ii)  (371) (30) (401) (462) (66) (528) 

Total costs before exceptional 
items and re-measurement of 
energy contracts  (1,192) (180) (1,372) (1,226) (202) (1,428) 

Exceptional items  7a – (516) (516) – 91 91 

Total costs before re-measurement 
of energy contracts within Group 
operating (loss)/profit  (1,192) (696) (1,888) (1,226) (111) (1,337) 
(i) Only includes costs incurred by employing legal entities within the Group. Costs for staff employed by legal entities outside the Group are recharged and recognised within ‘Other direct costs’. 
(ii) Included within cost of sales are operated and non-operated production costs, maintenance charges, recharged labour costs, tariffs and royalty expenses. Included within operating costs are 

insurance premiums, non-capital exploration costs, recharged labour costs and office and administrative costs. Operating costs also includes inventory impairment as detailed in note 16. 
(iii) The Group has amended the presentation of energy derivative contracts within cost of sales following an IFRIC agenda decision in March 2019. Prior year results have been restated accordingly. 

See note 1 for further details. 

(b) Re-measurement of energy contracts 

Year ended 31 December Note 

2019 
 

£m 

2018 
(restated)(i) 

£m 

Unrealised re-measurement of energy contracts 7b 194 (5) 

Realised re-measurement of energy contracts  148 (124) 

Re-measurement of energy contracts  342 (129) 
(i) The Group has amended the presentation of energy derivative contracts within cost of sales following an IFRIC agenda decision in March 2019. Prior year results have been restated accordingly. 

See note 1 for further details. 

(c) Employee costs 
Year ended 31 December Note 

2019 
£m 

2018 
£m 

Wages and salaries  (83) (87) 
Social security costs  (10) (10) 
Pension and other post-employment benefits costs 20 (9) (8) 

  (102) (105) 
Capitalised employee costs  5 9 

Employee costs expensed  (97) (96) 

Details of the remuneration of key management personnel are given in note S5. 

(d) Average number of employees during the year 
Year ended 31 December 

2019 
Number 

2018 
Number 

UK 507 507 

Norway 139 112 

Netherlands 56 55 

Total 702 674 
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(a) Exceptional items 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

(Impairment of exploration and production assets)/net reversal of impairment(i)  (548) 60 

Net reversal of unused decommissioning provisions(ii)  32 35 

Business change and restructuring costs(iii)  – (4) 

Exceptional items included within Group operating (loss)/profit  (516) 91 

Taxation on exceptional items(iv) 9 91 14 

Net exceptional items after taxation  (425) 105 
(i) (Impairment of exploration and production assets)/net reversal of impairments relate to the net changes in value of certain UK, Dutch and Norwegian gas and oil fields. The pre-tax impairment 

of £(548) million (2018: reversal £60 million), post-tax impairment of £408 million (2018: £58 million), is predominantly due to changes in long-term price forecasts and increased reserves. 
(ii) The reversal of decommissioning provisions pre-tax £32 million (2018: £35 million), post-tax £20 million (2018: £24 million) relates to assets previously impaired through exceptional items. 
(iii) Business change and restructuring costs include restructuring costs of £nil million (2018: £4 million, post-tax £1 million). The costs incurred relate principally to redundancy costs, 

transformational spend and consultancy costs incurred in implementing a new organisational model to reposition Spirit Energy as a European business.  
(iv) In 2019 Spirit Energy derecognised £(50) million of deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses, of which £32 million was recognised as an exceptional credit in 2018, mainly due to falling 

commodity prices and long term forecast profitability. 

(b) Unrealised re-measurement of energy contracts 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Unrealised re-measurement recognised in relation to energy contracts:    

Net gains/(losses) arising on market price movements and new contracts  184 (27) 

Net gains arising on delivery of contracts  10 22 

Net unrealised gain/(loss) from re-measurement of energy contracts included 
within Group operating profit/(loss)(i) 2, 6b 194 (5) 

Taxation on unrealised re-measurements 9 (77) 2 

Net re-measurements after taxation  117 (3) 
(i) Unrealised re-measurement amounts relate to unsettled fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) mark-to-market commodity and foreign exchange contracts. 

 

(c) Impairment accounting policy, process 
and sensitivities 

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of goodwill; PP&E; 
and intangible assets (with the exception of exploration 
assets – see note S1) annually, or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable 
amounts may be lower than their carrying amounts. Where 
an asset does not generate cash flows that are independent 
from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable 
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of value in use (VIU) and 
fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCD). 

At inception, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s 
CGUs or groups of CGUs that expect to benefit from the 
business combination in which the goodwill arose. If the 
recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be 

less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Any 
impairment is expensed immediately in the Consolidated 
Income Statement. Any CGU impairment loss is allocated 
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 
to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro rata 
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the 
CGU.  

Oil and gas hubs are the smallest discrete set of assets that 
individually generate cash flows, largely independent of 
other assets. If the recoverable amount is estimated to be 
less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. When recognising an 
impairment charge on oil and gas assets, impairment losses 
are allocated first to reduce fair value and subsequently to 
reduce carrying value. 
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For goodwill, because CGUs compete for capital for future 
investments across the Group, goodwill for impairment 
purposes is considered at an enterprise level as a single 
CGU. A FVLCD calculation has been used to determine 
recoverable amounts to support goodwill. This methodology 
is deemed to be more appropriate as it is based on the post-
tax cash flows arising from the underlying assets and is 
consistent with the approach taken by management to 
evaluate the economic value of the underlying assets. 

FVLCD discount rate and cash-flow assumptions 

A net impairment of £516 million (2018: reversal of £95 
million) has been recorded within exceptional items for the 
Group’s exploration and production assets, including £32 
million (2018: £35 million) of reductions to decommissioning 
provisions. For those assets subject to net impairment, the 
associated recoverable amounts (net of decommissioning 
costs) are £371 million (2018: £823 million). FVLCD is 
determined by discounting the post-tax cash flows expected 
to be generated by the gas and oil production and 
development assets, net of associated selling costs, taking 
into account those assumptions that market participants 
would use in estimating fair value. Post-tax cash flows are 
derived from projected production profiles of each field, 
taking into account forward prices for gas and liquids over 
the relevant period. Where forward market prices are not 
available, prices are determined based on internal model 
inputs. The date of cessation of production depends on the 
interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable 
quantities of hydrocarbons, production costs, the contractual 
duration of the licence area and the selling price of the gas 
and liquids produced. As each field has specific reservoir 
characteristics and economic circumstances, the post-tax 
cash flows for each field are computed using individual 
economic models. Post-tax cash flows used in the FVLCD 
calculation for the first five years are based on business 
plans submitted to the Spirit Energy Board and thereafter, 
are based on long-term production and cash flow forecasts, 
which management believes reflects the assumptions of a 
market participant.  

The future post-tax cash flows are discounted using a post-
tax nominal discount rate of 9.0% (2018: 9.5%) to determine 
the FVLCD. The discount rate reflects the current market 
assessments of the time value of money and is based on the 
estimated cost of capital of each CGU. Additionally, risks 
specific to the cash flows of the CGUs are reflected within 
cash flow forecasts. Inflation rates used in the five-year 

business plan were based on a blend of a number of 
publicly-available inflation forecasts for the UK. Inflation 
rates used were 2% (2018: 2%). 

The valuation of exploration and production assets and 
goodwill are particularly sensitive to the price assumptions 
made in the impairment calculations. To illustrate this, the 
price assumptions for gas and oil have been varied by +/–
10%. Changes in price generate different production profiles 
and, in some cases, the date that an asset ceases 
production. This has been considered in the sensitivity 
analysis. Otherwise, all other operating costs, life of field 
capital expenditure and abandonment expenditure 
assumptions remain unchanged. For exploration and 
production assets, an increase in gas and oil prices of 10% 
would reverse £91 million (2018: £82 million) of previous 
post-tax impairment charges of the underlying exploration 
and production assets. A reduction of 10% would give rise to 
further post-tax impairments of the underlying exploration 
and production assets of £89 million (2018: £74 million) but 
no post-tax impairment of goodwill (2018: £nil million). Since 
31 December 2019, short-term oil and gas commodity prices 
have significantly decreased from estimates used, partly due 
to the global outbreak of COVID-19 virus and partly due to 
Saudi Arabia’s decision to increase production. The impact of 
these lower prices would give rise to an additional post-tax 
asset impairment across the whole portfolio of exploration 
and production assets of £298 million, but no impairment of 
goodwill. 

Fair value hierarchy 

The fair value of exceptional items and re-measurements of 
energy contracts measured and held at fair value has been 
determined using level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (see note 
S3 for further details). 

The carrying value of oil and gas assets, measured at 
amortised cost, are considered to be approximately equal to 
their fair value. Significant inputs in determining the CGU fair 
value are oil and gas reserves and production profiles, 
forward commodity prices and foreign exchange curves, 
future capital expenditure, decommissioning and direct cost 
estimates. Cash flows are discounted using a post-tax 
nominal rate of 9.0%.  

Re-measurements of energy contracts are energy derivative 
contracts, which are valued at the balance sheet date using 
quoted future market prices.
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Year ended 31 December 

Financing  
costs 

£m 

Investment 
income 

£m 

2019 
 

Total 
£m 

Financing  
costs 

£m 

Investment  
income 

£m 

2018 
 

Total 
£m 

Interest income – 5 5 – 6 6 

Interest cost and financing fees (14) – (14) (10) – (10) 

Interest cost on leases (2) – (2) (1) – (1) 

 (16) 5 (11) (11) 6  (5) 

Net (losses)/gains on revaluation (2) – (2) – 9 9 

Other operating interest – – – (1) – (1) 

Notional interest arising from discounting (28) – (28) (30) – (30) 

Net finance costs (46) 5 (41) (42) 15 (27) 
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(a) Analysis of tax charge 

 
Year ended 31 December 

Business 
performance 

£m 

Exceptional 
items and  

unrealised 
re-measurements  

of energy  
contracts 

£m 

2019 
 
 
 

Results 
for  

the year 
£m 

Business 
performance 

£m 

Exceptional 
items and  

unrealised  
re-measurements  

of energy  
contracts 

£m 

2018 
 
 
 

Results for 
the year 

£m 

Current tax       

UK corporation tax  (4) – (4) (3) – (3) 

UK petroleum revenue tax 17 – 17 50 – 50 

Non-UK tax (123) – (123) (240) 3 (237) 
Adjustments in respect of prior years –  
UK  14 – 14 (1) – (1) 

Adjustments in respect of prior years –  
non-UK 1 – 1 3 – 3 

Total current tax (95) – (95) (191) 3 (188) 

       

Deferred tax       

Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences – UK 10 (60) (50) 7 (22) (15) 

UK petroleum revenue tax (5) 23 18 (1) (14) (15) 
Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences – non-UK (22) 51 29 (119) 49 (70) 
Adjustments in respect of prior years –  
UK  (18) – (18) (7) – (7) 

Adjustments in respect of prior years –  
non-UK 1 – 1 1 – 1 

Total deferred tax (34) 14 (20) (119) 13 (106) 

Total taxation on profit/(loss) (129) 14 (115) (310) 16 (294) 

Tax on items taken directly to equity is disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The Group earns the majority of its profits in Norway. UK exploration and 
production activities are taxed at a corporation tax rate of 30% (2018: 30%) plus a supplementary charge of 10% (2018: 10%) 
to give an overall rate of tax on upstream activities of 40% (2018: 40%). Petroleum revenue tax (PRT) is now set at nil% 
(2018: nil%) but may still give rise to refunds from the carry-back of excess reliefs (for example, from decommissioning) 
against historical profits taxed at 50%. Norwegian exploration and production profits are taxed at the standard rate of 22% 
(2018: 23%) plus a special tax of 56% (2018: 55%) resulting in an aggregate tax rate of 78% (2018: 78%).  

Within current tax liabilities are amounts totalling £20 million (2018: £20 million) that are to be settled with the ultimate 
parent group companies. These have been disclosed within S5 and are receivable in less than a year. 

The Group’s non-upstream UK profits are taxed at the standard rate of 19% (2018: 19%). 
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(b) Factors affecting the tax charge 

The difference between the total tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the upstream rate of UK corporation 
tax to the (loss)/profit before taxation is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 

Business  
performance  

£m 

Exceptional  
items and 

unrealised  
re-measurements 

of energy 
contracts  

£m 

2019 
 
 
 

Results for  
the year 

£m 

Business  
performance  

£m 

Exceptional  
items and 

unrealised  
re-measurements 

of energy  
contracts  

£m 

2018 
 
 
 

Results for  
the year 

£m 

Group (loss)/profit before tax 166 (322) (156) 399 86 485 
Tax on (loss)/profit at UK corporation 
tax rate of 40% (2018: 40%) (66) 129 63 (160) (34) (194) 

Effects of:       
Depreciation/impairment on non-
qualifying assets (including write-backs) (19) (10) (29) (36) (3)  (39) 

Movement in tax rates – (3) (3) 8 – 8 

Non-taxable disposals (6) – (6) 1 – 1 

Other non-allowable/non-taxable items (3) – (3) (11)  – (11) 

Upstream investment incentives 37 – 37 47 32 79 

UK petroleum revenue tax rates 7 14 21 24 (8) 16 

Non-UK tax rates (65) 87 22 (169) 29 (140) 

Goodwill and investment impairments – (157) (157) – – – 

Movement in uncertain tax provisions (7) – (7) (6) – (6) 
Movement in unrecognised deferred 
tax assets (5) (46) (51) (5) – (5) 

Adjustments in respect of prior years (2) – (2) (3) – (3) 

Taxation on (loss)/profit for the year (129) 14 (115) (310) 16 (294) 

Less: Movement in deferred tax 34 (14) 20 119 (13) 106 

Total current tax (95) – (95) (191) 3 (188) 

The Group is subject to taxation in a number of jurisdictions. The complexity of applicable rules may result in legitimate 
differences of interpretation between the Group and taxing authorities (or between different taxing authorities) especially 
where an economic judgement or valuation is involved. Further details in respect of uncertain tax positions are set out in note 3. 

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges 

The Group’s effective tax rates are impacted by changes to the mix of activities and production across the territories in which it 
operates. Effective tax rates may also fluctuate where profits and losses cannot be offset for tax purposes. 

2019 UK operations are subject to a higher effective tax rate than the current UK upstream tax rate. Income earned in 
territories outside the UK, notably in Norway, is generally subject to higher effective rates of tax than the current UK upstream 
rate. The Group’s effective tax rate of (73)% (2018: 61%) is expected to remain above the UK upstream rate. 

The guidelines provided by IFRIC 23 have been considered in determining uncertain tax positions. There has been no material 
change to the tax provisions as a result of adoption in the current year.
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Year ended 31 December £m  
Pence per  

share 

2019 
Date of  

payment £m  
Pence per  

share 

2018 
Date of  

payment 

Prior year final dividend       

Ordinary shares 353 36.96 25 March 2019 – – – 

Preference shares 47 4.92 25 March 2019 – – – 

Interim dividend  – – – – – – 

 400   –   

The Board has not recommended a payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019. 

 

11. ACQUISITIONS  
 AND DISPOSALS 
(a) Acquisitions 

No material acquisitions have been made by the Group  
in the year. 

(b) Disposals 

Disposal of interests in Valemon and Sindre 

On 13 September 2019, the Group signed a sale and 
purchase agreement for the divestment of their respective 
interests in Valemon and Sindre to Equinor for a 
consideration of £33 million. 

The economic date for the sale was 1 January 2019 and it 
was completed on 29 November 2019. An impairment 
charge of £49 million was recognised as an exceptional item 
in the income statement prior to the disposal, refer to note 7. 
The carrying value of the assets was equal to the proceeds 
upon completion.  

Disposal of interests in Nøkken 

The Group divested their non-operating interest in the 
discovery licence Nøkken (located in the Kvitebjørn field) to 
Equinor. Profit on disposal was £4 million, and the sale 
completed on 29 May 2019. 

None of the disposals are considered to be material enough 
to be shown as discontinued operations on the face of the 
Consolidated Income Statement as they do not represent a 
separate major line of business or material geographic area 
of operations. 

(c) Assets and liabilities held for sale 

On 31 October 2019, the Group signed a sale and purchase 
agreement for the divestment of their operating interest in 
UKCS Seaward Licence Number P.456, Block 48/2a, which 
includes an interest in the Babbage field, to Verus Petroleum 
(SNS) Limited for a consideration of £6 million, adjusted for 
final working capital.  

The economic date for the sale is 1 July 2019, and the 
transaction is expected to complete in the second quarter of 
2020 with a profit on disposal of under £1 million. The 
assets and liabilities have been classified as held for sale on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

 
Babbage 

£m 

Non-current assets  
Assets of disposal groups classified  
as held for sale 12 

Non-current liabilities  
Liabilities of disposal groups classified  
as held for sale (6) 

Net assets of disposal groups classified  
as held for sale 6 
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(a) Carrying amounts 

 Note 

Land and  
buildings 

£m 

Plant and  
equipment  

£m 

Gas and oil 
production 

£m 

2019 
 

Total 
£m 

Land and  
buildings 

£m 

Plant and  
equipment  

£m 

Gas and oil 
production 

£m 

2018 
 

Total 
£m 

Cost          

1 January   7 10 14,170 14,187 7 10 14,133 14,150 

IFRS 16 adjustment 4a 28 – 33 61 – – – – 

Adjusted opening balance  35 10 14,203 14,248 7 10 14,133 14,150 
Lease modifications and  
re-measurements  – – 37 37 – – – – 

Additions   – 1 280 281 – 1 333 334 

Acquisitions   – – – – – – 3 3 

Transfer from other intangible assets  – – 5 5 – – 36 36 
Transfer to disposal groups held 
for sale(i) 11c – – (17) (17) – – – – 

Disposals  – (1) (381) (382) – (1) (410) (411) 
Decommissioning liability revisions 
and additions  19 – – (129) (129) – – 50 50 

Exchange adjustments  (1) – (277) (278) – – 25 25 

31 December   34 10 13,721 13,765 7 10 14,170 14,187 

          

Accumulated depreciation  
and impairment          

1 January   (3) (9) (10,832) (10,844) (3) (8) (10,802) (10,813) 

Charge for the year  (5) – (599) (604) – (1) (530) (531) 

Reversal of impairment charge  – – – – – – 105 105 

Transfer to disposal groups held 
for sale(i) 11c – – 5 5 – – – – 

Impairment charge  – – (426) (426) – – – – 

Disposals  – – 355 355 – – 410 410 

Exchange adjustments  – – 177 177 – – (15) (15) 

31 December   (8) (9) (11,320) (11,337) (3) (9) (10,832) (10,844) 

Net book value at 31 December   26 1 2,401 2,428 4 1 3,338 3,343 
(i) Gas and oil production assets, with a net book value of £12 million, were transferred to held for sale and will be disposed of within the following year (see 11c for further details). 

(b) Assets in the course of construction included in the above carrying amounts 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Gas and oil production 143 585 
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(c) Right-of-use assets included in above carrying amounts 

 

Land and  
Buildings 

£m 

Gas and oil  
Production 

£m 

2019 
 

Total 
£m 

2018 
Gas and oil 
production 

£m 

Additions 27 70 97 17 

Depreciation charge for the year (4) (13) (17) (6) 

Net book value at 31 December 23 57 80 11 

13. OTHER INTANGIBLE  
 ASSETS AND GOODWILL 
(a) Carrying amounts 

 
Goodwill 

£m 

Exploration 
and 

evaluation 
expenditure 

£m 

Other  
intangibles 

£m 

2019 
 
 

Total 
£m 

Goodwill 
£m 

Exploration 
and  

evaluation 
expenditure 

£m 

Other  
intangibles 

£m 

2018 
 
 

Total 
£m 

Cost         

1 January  1,007 185 11 1,203 997 207 11 1,215 

Additions  – 214 – 214 – 114 – 114 

Acquisitions  – – – – 9 – – 9 

Write-downs(i) – (178) – (178) – (100) – (100) 
Transfers to property,  
plant and equipment – (5) – (5) – (36)  (36) 

Disposals – (14) – (14) – – – – 

Exchange adjustments (17) (4) – (21) 1 – – 1 

31 December  990 198 11 1,199 1,007 185 11 1,203 

         

Accumulated amortisation         

1 January  (510) – (7) (517) (510) – (3) (513) 

Amortisation – – (2) (2) – – (4) (4) 

31 December  (510) – (9) (519) (510) – (7) (517) 

Net book value as at 31 December 480 198 2 680 497 185 4 686 
(i) Within operating costs, write-downs of £56 million (2018: £55 million) were recognised in respect of drilling expenditure and write-downs of £122 million (2018: £45 million) were recognised within 

exceptional items. 

(b) Impairment reviews – summary of results 

During the year, no goodwill impairment was recognised (2018: £nil million) (see note 7 for further details). The Group’s 
business is treated as a single CGU for goodwill impairment testing purposes. Details of the impairment test methodologies 
and assumptions used are provided in note 7.
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Note 

Accelerated tax 
depreciation 
(corporation 

tax) 
£m 

Net  
decommis-

sionning 
£m 

Losses  
carried forward 

£m 

Other timing 
differences 

£m 

Marked-to-
market 

positions 
£m 

Net deferred 
petroleum  

revenue tax  
£m 

Retirement  
benefit  

obligation  
£m 

Total 
£m 

As at 1 January 2018  (861) 805 345 (14) 9 136 (1) 419 

(Charge)/credit to income  9 (126) 11 (24) 39 2 (9) 1 (106) 
Exchange and other 
adjustments  – – – 3 – – – 3 

As at 31 December 2018  (987) 816 321 28 11 127 – 316 

(Charge)/credit to income  9 129 (5) (76) 1 (80) 11 – (20) 

Disposal of business  (32) – – – – – – (32) 

Exchange and other 
adjustments  23 (12) – (4) – – – 7 

As at 31 December 2019  (867) 799 245 25 (69) 138 – 271 

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is an 
analysis of the gross deferred tax balances and associated offsetting balances for financial reporting purposes: 

As at 31 December 
Assets  

£m 

2019 
Liabilities  

£m 
Assets  

£m 

2018 
Liabilities  

£m 

Gross deferred tax balances  1,467 (1,196) 1,706 (1,390) 

Offsetting deferred tax balances  (1,065) 1,065 (1,113) 1,113 

Net deferred tax balances (after offsetting for financial reporting purposes) 402 (131) 593 (277) 

Deferred tax assets arise principally on decommissioning provisions, trading losses carried forward and PRT. Forecasts indicate 
that there will be suitable taxable profits to utilise those deferred tax assets not offset against deferred tax liabilities. Specific 
legislative provisions applicable to oil and gas production provide assurance that deferred tax assets relating to 
decommissioning costs and certain trading losses will be utilised. 

At the balance sheet date, the Group had certain unrecognised deductible temporary differences of £3,228 million (2018: 
£2,662 million), of which £2,230 million (2018: £1,881 million) are carried forward tax losses and allowances available for 
utilisation against future taxable profits. None of these losses and allowances will expire within one to five years. All other 
temporary differences have no expiry date. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these temporary 
differences, due to the lack certainty over future profit streams.
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As at 31 December 
Current  

£m 

2019 
Non-current  

£m 
Current  

£m 

2018 
Non-current  

£m 

Financial assets:     

Trade receivables 15 – 13 – 

Other accrued income 45 – 36 – 

Related-party receivables 186 69 233 101 

Other receivables (including loans) 79 4 69 – 

 325 73 351 101 

Less: provision for credit losses (1) – (1) – 

 324 73 350 101 

Non-financial assets: prepayments and other receivables 56 11 47 12 

 380 84 397 113 

Receivables are generally considered to be credit impaired when the payment is past the contractual due date. Contractual due 
dates range from falling due upon receipt to falling due in 30 days from receipt. 

Current financial assets within trade and other receivables net of provision for credit losses: 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Balances that are not past due 324 343 

Balances that are past due but not considered to be individually impaired – 6 

Balances with customers that are considered to be individually impaired – 1 

 324 350 

The provision for credit losses for trade and other receivables is based on the expected credit loss (ECL) model that calculates 
the expected loss applicable to the receivable balance over its lifetime, in line with the IFRS 9 impairment model requirements 
using a simplified model. The ECL provision in the current year was £1 million (2018: £ 1 million). 

16. INVENTORIES 
As at 31 December 

2019 
£m 

2018 
£m 

Oil in storage and transportation 18 10 

Other raw materials and consumables 69 77 

 87 87 

The Group consumed £3 million (2018: £7 million) of inventories during the year. Write-downs amounting to £5 million (2018: 
£7 million) were charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the year. No previous write-downs have been reversed in 
the year (2018: £4 million). 
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In cases where a derivative qualifies for hedge accounting, derivatives are classified as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. 
The fair value of the Group’s derivatives in hedge accounting relationships as at 31 December 2019 was not material (2018: 
£nil million). 

The carrying values of derivative financial instruments by product type for accounting purposes are as follows: 

As at 31 December 
Assets 

£m 

2019 
Liabilities 

£m 
Assets 

£m 

2018 
Liabilities 

£m 

Derivative financial instruments – held for trading under IFRS 9:     

Energy derivatives – for procurement/optimisation 172 (7) 37 (55) 

Foreign exchange derivatives 9 (3) 1 (7) 

Derivative financial instruments in hedge accounting relationships:     

Foreign exchange derivatives 1 – 1 – 

Total derivative financial instruments 182 (10) 39 (62) 

Included within:     

Derivative financial instruments – current 160 (9) 26 (50) 

Derivative financial instruments – non-current 22 (1) 13 (12) 

The contracts included within energy derivatives are £168 million (2018: £(40) million) of gas and £(3) million  
(2018: £22 million) of oil financial swaps used to hedge the price the Group sells its gas and oil production. 

Net gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments due to re-measurement: 

As at 31 December 

Income 
statement 

£m 

2019 
Equity 

£m 

Income 
statement 

£m 

2018 
Equity 

£m 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:     

Derivative financial instruments – held for trading under IFRS 9  10 – (4) – 

Derivative financial instruments in hedge accounting relationships – (1) – 1 

 10 (1) (4) 1 
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Trade and other payables include accruals and amounts owed to suppliers. Related-party payables relate to amounts due to 
the Group’s Shareholders and their subsidiaries. Further details can be found in note S5. 

As at 31 December 
Current 

£m 

2019 
Non-current 

£m 
Current 

£m 

2018 
Non-current 

£m 

Financial liabilities:     

Trade payables  (42) –  (46) – 

Capital payables  (61)  (86) (26) (105) 

Other payables  (139)  (1) (149) – 

Related-party payables  (51) –  (79) – 

Accruals  (68) –  (117) – 

  (361)  (87) (417) (105) 

Non-financial liabilities:     

Other payables and accruals  (13)  –  (10) – 

Deferred income  (4)  – (2) – 

 (378) (87) (429) (105) 

Financial liabilities within current trade and other payables have the following maturity: 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Less than 90 days  (347) (384) 

90 to 182 days  (13) (15) 

183 to 365 days  (1) (18) 

  (361) (417) 
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Current provisions  

1 January 
2019 

£m 

Reversed in  
the year 

£m 
Utilised 

£m 
Transfers(i) 

£m 

31 December 
2019 

£m 

Decommissioning costs(ii) (164)  –   129  (97)  (132) 

Other  (3)  3   –   –   –  

 (167)  3   129   (97)  (132) 

 

Non-current 
provisions  

1 January 
2019 

£m 

Charged in  
the year 

£m 

Notional  
interest 

£m 

Unused and 
reversed in 

the year 
£m 

Revisions 
and 

additions 
£m 

Transfers(i) 
£m 

Held for 
sale(11c) 

£m 
Disposals 

£m 

Foreign 
Exchange 

£m 

31 December 
2019 

£m 

Decommissioning 
costs(ii) (2,093)  (11)  (28)  44   129   97   6   38   42  (1,776) 

Other(iii)  (3)  –   –   –   (8)   –   –   –   –  (11) 

 (2,096)  (11)  (28)  44   121   97   6   38   42  (1,787) 
(i) Reallocation of provisions from non-current to current. 
(ii) Provision has been made for the estimated net present cost of decommissioning gas and oil production facilities at the end of their useful lives. The estimate has been based on 2P reserves, price 

levels and technology at the balance sheet date. The timings of decommissioning payments are dependent on the production life of the respective field but are currently anticipated to be incurred 
until 2049. During the year, of the £44 million (2018: £44 million) credit to operating profit/(loss) for provisions which were unused and reversed, £32 million (2018: £35 million) has been included 
as an exceptional item (see note 7(a)). Refer to note S1 for a summary of the Group’s decommissioning accounting policy and the discount rates used. 

(iii) The increase in other provisions is due to tariff provisions. 

20. POST- RETIREMENT 
 BENEFITS 
Defined contribution pension scheme contributions 

The cost charged to income of £9 million (2018: £8 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the Group at 
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. 
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(a) Commitments 
As at 31 December 

2019 
£m 

2018 
£m 

Commitments in relation to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment:   

Development of Nova oil and gas field 33 143 

Development of West of Shetland Lincoln and Warwick oil field 165 138 

Development of Norwegian Oda oil and gas assets 2 38 

Development of Cygnus gas field  – 16 

Development of Norwegian Maria oil and gas field 4 – 

Other capital expenditure 43 38 

Commitments in relation to the acquisition of intangible assets:   

Exploration activity 10 24 

Other intangible assets – – 

Other commitments:   

Transportation capacity 114 117 

Other contracts 11 25 

The carrying amount of the ROU assets, additions and depreciation charges as result of the application of IFRS 16 are disclosed 
in note 12. The total cash outflow in the year for lease arrangements was £30 million and the maturity analysis of cash flows 
associated with the Group’s lease liability at the reporting date is shown in note 22. 

Lease amounts which have not been included in the lease liabilities and charged to the Consolidated Income statement are 
presented below: 

As at 31 December 
2019 

 £m 
2018  

£m 

Short-term leases 15 – 

The Group’s expense related to short-term lease commitments predominantly related to drilling rigs leased during the current 
year (2018: £nil million).
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(b) Guarantees and indemnities 

The Group has provided a number of securities in relation to 
its exploration and production activities, covering liabilities in 
respect of obligations relating to decommissioning, historic 
asset acquisitions/disposals, licences and operational 
agreements and office leases. The securities take the form 
of guarantees provided by the Group and a number of 
Centrica group entities. The Group pays a charge set on an 
arms-length basis (similar to fees charged by the financial 
institutions) for the guarantees issued by the Centrica group 
entities. Spirit Energy has given a counter indemnity for any 
guarantees issued by entities in the Centrica group. 

Most of these securities relate to decommissioning liabilities 
and in this respect, the securities cover field developments 
owned or partly owned by the Group. These securities are 
provided to fellow partners and previous owners of these 
fields, who may be liable for the Group’s share of the 
decommissioning costs in the event of default by the Group. 
The most significant securities relate to the Morecambe and 
Statfjord fields. As at 31 December 2019, £651 million 
(2018: £615 million) of letters of credit and on-demand 
payment bonds have been issued in respect of 
decommissioning obligations included in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. The majority of these guarantees have been 
issued from bank facilities held by Centrica plc with the 
remainder issued by Centrica Production Limited, a fellow 
subsidiary of the Centrica group. 

In addition, there are a number of capped and uncapped 
parent company guarantees provided by Centrica plc 
relating to decommissioning security agreements. 

As additional assets are developed or acquired, additional 
securities may need to be provided. 

Centrica plc has provided a parent company guarantee to 
the Norwegian Ministry of Oil and Energy covering the 
economic liabilities that Spirit Energy Norway AS has 
undertaken as a licensee on the Norwegian continental shelf 
in so far as they relate to the exploration and exploitation of 
subsea natural resources, including storage and 
transportation by means other than ship. This also 
guarantees any liability which may be imposed under 
Norwegian law for pollution, damage and/or personal injury 
to the Norwegian state, Norwegian municipality, Norwegian 
public institutions and other third parties. The liability is 
uncapped. 

Centrica plc has provided a parent company guarantee to 
the Danish Oil Pipe A/S that follows from the Danish 
Pipeline Act that the shippers in the facilities of Danish Oil 
Pipe A/S are obliged to provide security under transportation 
agreements entered into. The liability is uncapped. 

Centrica plc has provided a parent company guarantee to 
Gassco guaranteeing payment obligations in connection with 
the booking of capacity in the Gassled system (infrastructure 
on the Norwegian Continental Shelf). The liability is capped 
at NOK 900 million. 

Spirit Energy Limited has provided security in favour of the 
Oil and Gas Authority (OGA), guaranteeing that its licence-
holding subsidiaries will each meet their respective licence 
obligations. This includes providing a guarantee for any sums 
that may become due from such licensees to OGA. The 
liability is uncapped. 

Spirit Energy Limited acts as guarantor to the Group’s 
obligations under the revolving unsecured credit facility 
agreement described in note 22(b). 

Bayerngas Norge AS has provided a parent company 
guarantee to Ineos Oil & Gas Denmark, securing the 
obligations of Spirit Energy Danmark ApS under the joint 
operating agreement in connection with its petroleum 
activities on the Danish shelf. 
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(a) Capital management 

The Group seeks to maintain an efficient capital structure 
with a combination of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings 
and equity. 

Capital is managed in order to provide returns for 
Shareholders and to safeguard the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Spirit Energy is not subject to 
any externally-imposed capital requirements. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may put in place new 
debt facilities or adjust the dividend payment to 
Shareholders. 

(b) Liquidity risk and going concern 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis as the Group is well funded, with 
flexibility within its financial framework to be sustainable 
and maintain liquidity in the long term, as described in the 
basis of preparation. 

The Group has treasury and hedging policies and prepares 
an annual plan and periodic cash flow forecasts. This 
enables the Group to monitor and manage liquidity risk. The 
Group’s capital structure means that it is capable of being 
self-financing through operating cash flows in a range of 
commodity price environments. The Group aims to maintain 
a cash working capital buffer of at least £50 million. 

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of £361 million 
(2018: £639 million) at 31 December 2019. This includes 
restricted cash and cash equivalents of £23 million (2018: 
£49 million). In addition, the Group has an undrawn revolving 
unsecured credit facility agreement of £250 million. The 
£250 million revolving unsecured credit facility agreement is 
provided by Centrica plc, the ultimate parent company of the 
Group’s Shareholder GBGH, and Stadtwerke München 

GmbH, the ultimate parent company of SWM and BE/PB. 
This facility, which unless earlier terminated, will be 
available through to September 2021.  

In addition, the Group may request, but is not guaranteed to 
receive, an amount to cover any emergency or shortfall from 
its Shareholders. 

The principal risks & uncertainties in the strategic report on 
page 14 explains the increased challenges the Group faces 
with COVID-19 and the depression in commodity prices. 
More specifically, the Group is committed to remaining free 
cash flow positive across 2020 and 2021 and the Board 
meets regularly to review plans to mitigate against the 
continued commodity price decline. The Group has identified 
significant reductions in costs through opportunities to defer 
or suspend projects, and savings in current projects with 
minimal impact to production in 2020 and 2021. 
Furthermore, the Board has not recommended a payment of 
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019. These 
measures are expected to offset the impact of the current 
price environment and contribute a positive free cash flow 
across 2020 and 2021. 

The Board has considered the principal risks to these cash 
flow projections in a sensitivity analysis, the most significant 
of which is a further sustained decline in commodity prices 
resulting in an average gas price of 15p/th for the remainder 
of 2020 and 20p/th in 2021, and an average oil price of 
$20/bbl for the remainder of 2020 and $25/bbl in 2021. This 
sensitivity analysis also includes production outage 
scenarios. The Board considers these risks are mitigated by 
the significant cash and cash equivalents balance noted 
above whilst the Group does not rule out further cost 
reductions, and the Group has access to a £250 million 
revolving unsecured credit facility provided by its 
Shareholders. Consequently, the Board is satisfied that the 
Group can continue as a going concern.
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(c) Lease liabilities 

As at 31 December 
Current 

£m 

2019 
Non-current 

£m 

2018 
Current 

£m 

Lease liabilities (23) (63) – 

Related-party obligation under finance lease(i) – – (11) 

 
(23) (63) (11) 

(i) Refer to note S5 for the main terms and conditions. 

(d) Maturity analysis for non-current borrowings 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

1–2 years (23) – 

2–5 years (36) – 

>5 years (4) – 

 (63) – 

(e) Net debt summary 

 

Related-party 
finance lease 

£m 

Other leases  
and financing  
costs accrual 

£m 

Net  
related-party  

borrowings 
£m 

Gross debt 
£m 

Cash, overdrafts 
and cash 

equivalents(i) (ii)  
£m 

Net debt 
£m 

1 January 2018 (17) – (106) (123) 293 170 
Cash outflow from repayment 
of borrowings – – 106 106 (106) – 
Cash outflow from payment of capital 
element of finance leases 6 – – 6 (6) – 

Financing interest and fees paid 1 – – 1 (3) (2) 

Increase in interest payable (1) – – (1) – (1) 

Remaining cash inflow – – – – 457 457 

Exchange adjustments – – – – 4 4 

31 December 2018 (11) – – (11) 639 628 

IFRS 16 adjustment – (61) – (61) – (61) 

Adjusted opening balance (11) (61) – (72) 639 567 

New lease commitments – (44) – (44) – (44) 
Cash outflow from payment of capital 
element of leases 11 18 – 29 (29) – 

Financing interest and fees paid – 1 – 1 (13) (12) 

Increase in interest payable – (2) – (2) – (2) 

Remaining cash outflow – – – – (235) (235) 

Exchange adjustments – 2 – 2 (1) 1 

31 December 2019 – (86) – (86) 361 275 
(i) Cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash relating to joint operations of £22 million (2018: £43 million) and withholdings of employee payroll tax of £1 million (2018: £1 million).  

In 2018, there was also restricted cash of £5 million relating to operational and office rental agreements. 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents include £312 million (2018: £532 million) which is due from a related-party and classified as a cash equivalent. Refer to note S5 for the terms and conditions. 
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Allotted and fully paid share capital of the Company: 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

296,056,457 A class ordinary shares of 1 pence each (2018: 296,056,457) 3 3 

658,964,372 B class ordinary shares of 1 pence each (2018: 658,964,372) 6 6 

1 deferred share of £1 (2018: 1) – – 

955,020,829 preference shares of 1 pence each (2018: 955,020,829) 10 10 

 19 19 

The A and B class ordinary shares have attached to them full voting, dividend (including the right to special dividends in the 
case of B class ordinary shares) and capital distribution (including winding up) rights. They do not confer any rights of 
redemption.  

Special dividends are required to be declared in certain circumstances, subject to the availability of sufficient distributable 
reserves. The special dividends are therefore not discretionary and as such, are accounted for as a financial liability when the 
event triggering the special dividend occurs. 

The deferred share does not have any right to a dividend or distribution of profits of the Company on winding up. The holder is 
entitled to repayment of the amount paid up after repayment of the capital paid up on the A ordinary and B ordinary shares. 
The deferred share does not attach any rights to receive notice of, attend, speak or vote at a general meeting or on any written 
resolution of the Company.  

The preference shares have attached to them voting (only in respect of variation or abrogation of the rights attaching to them), 
dividend (in priority to ordinary Shareholders, save for special dividends) and capital distribution (including on winding up and in 
such case in priority to ordinary Shareholders) rights. The shares are redeemable (in whole or in part) at the Company’s option 
and on redemption, entitle the holder to a specified payment.  

The Shareholders’ agreement governs further rights to redeem the preference shares and also circumstances when conversion 
of preference shares can occur, but these are all at the discretion of the Company.  

The preference share dividends are non-cumulative and are fixed at 5.5% per annum with a floating element of up to 1.5% per 
annum based on the Company’s post-tax profits. The overall dividend is only payable at the discretion of the Directors of the 
Company and subject to having sufficient distributable reserves. 

As detailed in note 3, the preference shares are deemed to be equity instruments. 

24. SHARE PREMIUM 
In December 2019, by special resolution of the Board of Directors and pursuant to Companies Act sections 641and 642, the 
Company reduced its share premium account by £1,500 million (2018: £1,000 million) and transferred the resulting 
distributable reserves to retained earnings.
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The immediate parent undertaking and controlling party is GB Gas Holdings Limited, a company registered in England and 
Wales, which holds a 69% voting interest in the Company. The registered office address is Millstream Maidenhead Road, 
Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 5GD. 

The Company’s ultimate parent company and ultimate controlling party is Centrica plc, who through a 100% wholly-owned 
subsidiary, owns 100% of the ordinary shares in GB Gas Holdings Limited. Centrica plc is a company registered in England and 
Wales, which is the only company to include these financial statements in its consolidated financial statements. Copies of the 
Centrica plc consolidated financial statements may be obtained from www.centrica.com. 

26. EVENTS AFTER THE  
 BALANCE SHEET DATE 
In February 2020, we signed a deal for the sale of the Danish assets Hejre and Solsort to Ineos, which we expect to complete 
later this year. 

On 14 May 2020, the sale of the operating interest in UKCS Seaward Licence Number P.456, Block 48/2a, which includes an 
interest in the Babbage field, to Verus Petroleum (SNS) Limited was completed.  

Subsequent to the year end, global oil prices have fallen by more than 50%. This is partly due to the global outbreak of the 
COVID-19 virus and partly due to Saudi Arabia’s decision to increase production. Although it is not possible to reliably estimate 
the length or severity of the developments, and hence their financial impact, should oil prices remain, at or below, the current 
prevailing levels for an extended period of time, there could be a significant adverse impact on our financial results for future 
periods.  

In response to the impact of declining commodity prices, Spirit Energy has implemented a program to significantly reduce 
operating costs, capital expenditure and decommissioning spend in order to remain within the Financial Framework set out in 
the Shareholder Agreements. 

 

http://www.centrica.com/


S1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT  
 ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
 

59 
 

Spirit Energy Annual Report & Financial Statements year ended 31 December 2019 

  

Income statement presentation 

The Consolidated Income Statement separately identifies 
the effects of re-measurement of certain financial 
instruments, and items that are exceptional, in order to 
provide readers with a clear and consistent presentation of 
the Group’s underlying performance, as described in note 2. 

Basis of consolidation 

See note 1 for further details.  

Revenue 

The Group recognises revenue reflecting the transfer of 
goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. The majority of 
revenue is classified as IFRS 15 whilst non-IFRS 15 revenue 
principally relates to commodity hedging and derivatives and 
selected intercompany gas sales.  

Revenue arising from the sale of produced gas is recognised 
in a manner consistent with energy supply contracts with 
the revenue recognition profile reflecting the supply of gas 
to the customer. In respect of oil sales, each barrel of oil is 
considered to be a separate performance obligation satisfied 
at a point in time – on delivery. The rights and obligations 
identifiable within a contract where the Group holds sellers’ 
nomination rights are considered to be enforceable from 
inception of the contract. The transaction price for the 
contract will include variable consideration based on 
forecast production and market prices. The point at which 
the performance obligation is satisfied, and revenue 
recognised is the point at which control of the commodity 
passes to the customer according to the contractual trading 
terms, usually on shipment or delivery to a specified 
location. 

Amounts paid in advance are treated as deferred income, 
with any amount in arrears recognised as accrued income. 
These deferred or accrued amounts are then recognised 
once the recognition criteria are met.  

Revenue associated with exploration and production sales 
(of natural gas, crude oil and condensates) is recognised 
when the customer obtains control of the goods. For oil and 
natural gas, this generally occurs when the product is 
physically transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery 
mechanism. Revenue from the production of natural gas, oil 
and condensates in which the Group has an interest with 

other producers is recognised based on the Group’s working 
interest and the terms of the relevant production sharing 
arrangements (the entitlement method). Tariff revenue from 
the use of the Group’s platform and pipeline facilities is 
recognised at a point in time, when products are physically 
transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery mechanism 
as the customer gains control of the use of the pipeline 
facilities when the goods (oil and gas) are transferred into 
the vessel, pipe or other delivery mechanism. 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales relating to gas and oil production includes 
depreciation of assets used in production of gas and oil, tariff 
costs and direct labour costs. 

Investment income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to 
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying value.  

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that arise in connection with the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised and subsequently amortised in line with the 
depreciation of the related asset. Borrowing costs are 
capitalised from the time of acquisition or from the 
beginning of construction or production until the point at 
which the qualifying asset is ready for use. Where a specific 
financing arrangement is in place, the specific borrowing rate 
for that arrangement is applied. For non-specific financing 
arrangements, a Group financing rate representative of the 
weighted average borrowing rate of the Group is used. 
Borrowing costs not arising in connection with the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are expensed. 
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Foreign currencies 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in 
pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the 
parent company and the Group’s presentational currency. 
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of each entity are measured using that 
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are, 
on initial recognition, recorded in the functional currency  
of the entity at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction.  

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate  
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange 
movements are included in the Consolidated Income 
Statement for the period.  

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in 
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity 
concerned are translated using the exchange rate prevailing 
at the dates of the initial transaction. 

For the purpose of presenting Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s non-
sterling functional currency subsidiary undertakings are 
translated into pounds sterling at exchange rates prevailing 
at the balance sheet date. The results of these entities are 
translated into pounds sterling at the average rates of 
exchange for the relevant period. The relevant exchange 
rates are shown below: 

As at 31 December 
Exchange rate 
per pound 
sterling (£) 

Closing rate Average rate 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

Euro 1.18 1.11 1.14 1.13 

US dollar 1.33 1.28 1.28 1.33 

Norwegian krone 11.65 11.04 11.25 10.87 

Danish krone 8.83 8.32 8.52 8.42 

Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of the 
opening net assets and results of non-sterling functional 
currency operations are transferred to the Group’s foreign 
currency translation reserve included in other equity. In the 
event of the disposal of an undertaking with assets and 
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency, the cumulative 
translation difference arising in the foreign currency 

translation reserve is charged or credited to the 
Consolidated Income Statement on disposal. 

Unit arrangements 

Where the Group has entered into unit arrangements with 
partner licences, the share of ownership is reviewed on a 
regular basis in accordance with the unit agreement based 
on updated estimates of reserves contributed by each 
partner in the unit. In the event a review results in a 
decreased share in the unit, where excess volumes received 
in the past are redelivered by the partner with the reduced 
ownership share according to an agreed schedule, these 
volumes are accounted for at the time of redelivery and not 
accrued for in advance. Similarly, where the review results in 
an increased share, the volumes are accounted for at the 
time of receipt.  

Business combinations and goodwill 

Businesses within the Group that have been acquired as part 
of historic business combinations have been included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements on the same basis that 
they are included within the Centrica plc group financial 
statements. The acquisitions of these entities are accounted 
for using the acquisition method (at the point the Group or, 
as explained above, the Centrica plc group, gains control 
over a business as defined by IFRS 3: ‘Business 
combinations’). The cost of the acquisition is measured as 
the cash paid and the aggregate of the fair values, at the 
date of exchange, of other assets transferred, liabilities 
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the 
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. The 
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset 
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration 
arrangement at the acquisition date. 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under 
IFRS 3, are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition 
date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that 
are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5: 
‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations’, which are recognised and measured at FVLCD.  
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Goodwill arising on a business combination represents the 
excess of the consideration transferred and the acquisition 
date fair value of any previously held interest in the acquiree 
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable 
net assets acquired. Goodwill is initially recognised as an 
asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. If, after reassessment, the 
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is 
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income 
Statement. 

On disposal of one of the Group’s undertakings, any amount 
of goodwill attributed to that entity is included in the 
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. A similar 
accounting treatment is applied on disposal of assets that 
represent a business. 

Other intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Intangible assets include application 
software, emissions trading schemes and certain exploration 
and evaluation expenditures, the accounting policies for 
which are dealt with separately below. For purchased 
application software cost includes directly attributable 
labour, contractors’ charges and materials. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Capitalisation occurs when activities to prepare the asset for 
use are in progress and expenditure for the asset is incurred. 
Capitalisation subsequently ceases when substantially all 
the activities necessary to prepare the asset for use are 
complete. Amortisation then commences at the point of 
commercial deployment. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at 
cost less any accumulation amortisation and impairment 
losses. The useful life of intangible assets can be assessed 
as finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their 
useful economic life. Assessments for impairment take 
place annually or when there is an impairment indicator. The 
amortisation period and method of intangible assets are also 
reviewed annually. Changes in the expected useful life or 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for on a 

prospective basis by changing the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not 
amortised. Instead they are tested for impairments annually 
and when there is an impairment indicator. This may be 
either individually or at a CGU level. The indefinite life 
assessment is reviewed annually. Any change from 
indefinite life to finite life is be applied on a prospective basis. 

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from their use. 

The useful life for other intangibles is up to 15 years. 

EU Emissions Trading Scheme 

Purchased carbon dioxide emissions allowances are 
recognised initially at cost (purchase price) within intangible 
assets. The liability is measured at the cost of purchased 
allowances up to the level of purchased allowances held, 
and then at the market price of allowances ruling at the 
balance sheet date, with movements in the liability 
recognised in operating profit. 

Forward contracts for the purchase or sale of carbon dioxide 
emissions allowances are measured at fair value with gains 
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
the Consolidated Income Statement. The intangible asset is 
surrendered, and the liability is extinguished, at the end of 
the compliance period to reflect the consumption of 
economic benefits. 

Exploration, evaluation, development and  
production assets 

The Group uses the successful efforts method of accounting 
for exploration and evaluation expenditure. Exploration and 
evaluation expenditure associated with an exploration well, 
including acquisition costs related to exploration and 
evaluation activities are capitalised initially as intangible 
assets. Certain expenditures such as geological and 
geophysical exploration costs are expensed. If the prospects 
are subsequently determined to be successful on 
completion of evaluation, the relevant expenditure including 
licence acquisition costs is transferred to PP&E. If the 
prospects are subsequently determined to be unsuccessful 
on completion of evaluation, the associated costs are 
expensed in the period in which that determination is made.  
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All field development costs are capitalised as PP&E. Such 
costs relate to the acquisition and installation of production 
facilities and include development drilling costs, project-
related engineering and other technical services costs. 
PP&E, including rights and concessions related to 
production activities, are depreciated from the 
commencement of production in the fields concerned, using 
the unit-of-production method, based on all of the 2P 
reserves of those fields. Changes in these estimates are 
dealt with prospectively.  

The net carrying value of fields in production and 
development is annually compared on a field-by-field basis 
with the likely discounted future net revenues to be derived 
from the remaining commercial reserves. An impairment 
loss is recognised where it is considered that recorded 
amounts are unlikely to be fully recovered from the net 
present value of future net revenues. Exploration assets are 
reviewed annually for indicators of impairment and 
production and development assets are tested annually for 
impairment. 

Interests in joint arrangements 

Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are those that convey 
joint control which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control. Investments in joint arrangements 
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures 
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each 
investor.  

The Group’s interests in joint operations (oil and gas 
exploration and production licence arrangements) are 
accounted for by recognising its assets (including its share of 
assets held jointly), its liabilities (including its share of 
liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue from the sale of its 
share of the output arising from the joint operation, its share 
of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint 
operation and its expenses (including its share of any 
expenses incurred jointly). 

Where the Group has an equity stake or a participating 
interest in operations governed by a joint arrangement for 
which it is acting as operator, an assessment is carried out 
to confirm whether the Group is acting as agent or principal. 
As the terms and conditions negotiated between business 
partners usually provide joint control to the parties over the 
relevant activities of the oil and gas fields that are governed 
by joint arrangements, the Group is usually deemed to be an 

agent when it is appointed as operator and not as principal 
(as the contracts entered into do not convey control to the 
parties). Accordingly, the Group recognises its equity share 
of these arrangements as outlined above except that it 
presents gross liabilities and gross receivables of the joint 
venture (including amounts due to or from non-operating 
partners) in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance 
with the netting rules of IAS 32: ‘Financial instruments: 
presentation’. 

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E) 

PP&E is included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation and any provisions for 
impairment. The initial cost of an asset comprises its 
purchase price or construction cost and any costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset into operation. The 
purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount 
paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to 
acquire the asset.  

Subsequent expenditure in respect of items of PP&E such as 
the replacement of major parts, major inspections or 
overhauls, are capitalised as part of the cost of the related 
asset where it is probable that future economic benefits will 
arise as a result of the expenditure and the cost can be 
reliably measured. All other subsequent expenditure, 
including the costs of day-to-day servicing, repairs and 
maintenance, is expensed as incurred. 

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other PP&E, with the 
exception of exploration and production assets (see 
exploration, evaluation, development and production assets 
section), are depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates 
sufficient to write off the cost, less estimated residual 
values, of individual assets over their estimated useful lives. 
The depreciation periods for the principal categories of 
assets are as follows: 

Freehold and leasehold buildings Up to 50 years 

Plant 5 to 20 years 

Equipment 3 to 10 years 

Assets held under leases are depreciated over their 
expected useful economic lives on the same basis as for 
owned assets, or where shorter, the lease term. 

The carrying values of PP&E are tested annually for 
impairment and are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
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may not be recoverable. Residual values and useful lives are 
reassessed annually and, if necessary, changes are 
accounted for prospectively. 

Held for sale and discontinued operations 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as 
held for sale when the Directors are committed to the sale, 
the sale is highly probable to be completed within a year of 
its classification and the asset, or disposal group, is available 
for immediate sale in its present condition.  

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as 
held for sale at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less costs of disposal. No depreciation is charged in 
respect of non-current assets classified as held for sale. 

Impairment assumptions 

Details of the approach taken to impairment are included in 
note 7(c).  

Overlift and underlift 

Off-take arrangements for oil and gas produced from joint 
operations are often such that it is not practical for each 
participant to receive or sell its precise share of the overall 
production during the period. This results in short-term 
imbalances between cumulative production entitlement and 
cumulative sales, referred to as overlift and underlift. 

An overlift payable, or underlift receivable, is recognised at 
the balance sheet date within trade and other payables, or 
trade and other receivables, respectively, and measured at 
market value, with movements in the period recognised 
within cost of sales. 

Leases 

Under IFRS 16, an arrangement is, or contains, a lease where 
the contract conveys the right to use an asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. Lessees must recognise 
ROU assets to represent its rights to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities to represent its obligation to 
make lease payments. However, exemptions are available 
for low-value or short-term leases to be recognised as an 
expense. 

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges 
and reduction of the finance lease obligation to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 

liability. Finance charges are recognised in the Consolidated 
Income Statement within financing costs. 

If a lease is terminated before its expected lease term  
(e.g. the lessee exercises a break clause that was previously 
not assessed to be reasonably certain to be exercised  
or the lessee defaults so that the lessor repossesses the 
underlying asset), the Group will derecognise the carrying 
amount of the net investment in the lease and recognise the 
underlying asset. The underlying asset is initially measured 
at the carrying amount of the net investment in the lease 
immediately before its derecognition. 

If a lease modification occurs, the Group will determine 
whether the modification should be accounted for as a 
separate contract or as a change in the accounting for the 
existing lease.  

If the modification grants the lessee the right to use 
additional property, plant and equipment not contemplated 
in the original contract and is priced in a manner consistent 
with the stand-alone price of the additional right-of-use, the 
modified lease will be accounted for as a separate contract. 

If the modification results in the lease being classified as an 
operating lease, the modification is accounted as if it were a 
termination of the existing lease and the creation of a new 
lease that commences on the effective date of the 
modification. The Group will derecognise the net investment 
in the lease receivable and recognise the underlying asset at 
the carrying value of the net investment in the lease 
receivable that existed immediately prior to the date of 
modification.  

Inventories 

Commodity inventories (oil and gas) are valued at market 
value. Other inventories are valued on a weighted-average-
cost basis, at the lower of cost or estimated net realisable 
value after allowance for redundant and slow-moving items. 
The cost of inventories includes the purchase price plus 
costs of conversion incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition.  

Decommissioning costs 

Provision is made for the net present value of the estimated 
cost of decommissioning gas and oil production facilities at 
the end of the producing lives of fields, based on price levels 
and current technology at the balance sheet date. 
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When this provision relates to an asset with sufficient future 
economic benefits, a decommissioning asset is recognised 
and included as part of the associated PP&E and 
depreciated accordingly. If there is an indication that the new 
carrying amount of the asset is not fully recoverable, the 
asset is tested for impairment and an impairment loss is 
recognised where necessary. Changes in these estimates 
and changes to the discount rates are dealt with 
prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the 
provision and corresponding decommissioning asset 
included within PP&E. The unwinding of the discount on the 
provision is included in the Consolidated Income Statement 
within interest expense. 

The discount rates used in calculating the decommissioning 
provisions are:  

Years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 

 UK Netherlands Norway Denmark 

Real 1.20% 1.20% 1.20% 1.20% 

Inflation 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 

Nominal 3.73% 3.73% 3.73% 3.73% 

Pensions and other post-employment benefits 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 
schemes are recognised in the Consolidated Income 
Statement as they fall due. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
that can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the 
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions 
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date 
and are discounted to present value where the effect is 
material. 

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 
to the passage of time is recognised in the Consolidated 
Income Statement within interest expense. Onerous contract 
provisions are recognised where the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligation under a contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under it. 

Taxation 

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, UK petroleum 
revenue tax and foreign tax is provided at amounts expected 
to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. From time to time, the Group may have open tax 
issues with a number of revenue authorities. Where an 
outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable 
estimate of the dispute can be made, management provides 
for its best estimate of the liability. These estimates take 
into account the specific circumstances of each dispute and 
relevant external advice. Each item is considered separately 
and on a basis that provides the better prediction of the 
outcome. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary 
differences identified at the balance sheet date, except to 
the extent that the deferred tax arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill (if impairment of goodwill is not 
deductible for tax purposes) or the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
combination and at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss. 
Temporary differences are differences between the carrying 
amount of the Group’s assets and liabilities and their tax 
base. 

Deferred tax liabilities may be offset against deferred tax 
assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying local tax 
group. Any remaining deferred tax asset is recognised only 
when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be 
regarded as probable that there will be suitable taxable 
profits, within the same jurisdiction, in the foreseeable 
future, against which the deductible temporary difference 
can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on 
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the periods in which the asset is 
realised or liability settled, based on tax rates and laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. Measurement of deferred tax liabilities and 
assets reflects the tax consequences expected from the 
manner in which the asset or liability is recovered or settled.
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Financial instruments  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised  
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet when the Group becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets are derecognised when the Group no longer 
has the rights to cash flows, the risks and rewards of 
ownership or control of the asset. Financial liabilities are 
derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which 
is usually the original invoice amount and are subsequently 
held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. 
Balances are written off when recoverability is assessed as 
being remote. If collection is due in one year or less, 
receivables are classified as current assets. If not, they are 
presented as non-current assets. 

Trade payables 

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value, which  
is usually original invoice amount and are subsequently held 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  
If payment is due within one year or less, payables are 
classified as current liabilities. If not, they are presented  
as non-current liabilities. 

Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in 
equity as a deduction from the proceeds received. Other 
instruments are classified as equity where they are judged to 
meet the definition of equity if, for example, the issuer has 
the ability to avoid repayment and any coupon is 
discretionary.  

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash in hand and current balances with banks 
and similar institutions. Cash equivalents include cash on 
deposit with related parties, which is readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which is subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in value and has an original maturity of three 
months or less. 

For the purpose of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. 

Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings 

All interest-bearing loans and other borrowings are initially 
recognised at fair value net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing 
loans and other borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue 
costs, discount or premium.  

Related-party receivables and payables  

Related-party receivables and payables are recognised 
initially at fair value plus any transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
receivable or payable. Subsequently they are measured  
at amortised cost using the effective interest method and, 
for receivables, less an allowance for any uncollectable 
amounts. 

Derivative financial instruments 

The Group routinely enters into sale contracts for the 
physical delivery of gas and oil. These contracts are entered 
into and continue to be held for the purpose of delivery  
of the physical commodity in accordance with the Group’s 
expected sale requirements (‘own use’) and are not within 
the scope of IFRS 9. 

The Group uses a range of derivatives to hedge exposures to 
financial risks, such as foreign exchange and energy price 
risks, arising in the normal course of business. All derivatives 
are recognised at fair value on the date on which the 
derivative is entered into and are re-measured to fair value 
at each reporting date. The method of recognising the 
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is 
designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of 
the item being hedged. Certain derivative instruments do not 
qualify for hedge accounting. Such derivatives are measured 
at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, and changes 
in the fair value that do not qualify for hedge accounting are 
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income 
Statement. 
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Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is 
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
Derivative assets and derivative liabilities are offset and 
presented on a net basis only when both a legal right of set-
off exists and the intention to net settle the derivative 
contracts is present. 

The Group enters into certain energy derivative contracts, 
the fair value of such derivatives is estimated by reference in 
part to published price quotations from active markets, to 
the extent that such observable market data exists, and in 
part by using valuation techniques, whose inputs include 
data which is not based on or derived from observable 
markets. Where the fair value at initial recognition for such 
contracts differs from the transaction price, a fair value gain 
or fair value loss will arise. This is referred to as a day-one 
gain or day-one loss. Such gains and losses are deferred (not 
recognised) and amortised to the Consolidated Income 
Statement based on volumes purchased or delivered over 
the contractual period until such time observable market 
data becomes available. When observable market data 
becomes available, any remaining deferred day-one gains or 
losses are recognised within the Consolidated Income 
Statement.  

Hedge accounting 

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified 
as cash flow hedges. A derivative is classified as a cash flow 
hedge when it hedges exposure to variability in cash flows 
that is attributable to a particular risk either associated with 
a recognised asset, liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction. The Group’s cash flow hedges consist of 
forward foreign exchange contracts used to protect against 
the variability of functional currency denominated cash 
flows associated with non-functional currency denominated 
highly probable forecast transactions.  

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 
which is effective is recognised directly in equity while any 
ineffectiveness is recognised in the Consolidated Income 
Statement. The gains or losses that are initially recognised 
in the cash flow hedging reserve in the Consolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income are transferred to the 
Consolidated Income Statement in the same period in which 
the highly probable forecast transaction affects income. 
Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or 
liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the 
initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability 
on its recognition. Hedge accounting is discontinued when 

the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 
exercised without replacement or rollover, no longer 
qualifies for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the 
designation. At that point in time, any cumulative gain or 
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity remains 
in equity until the highly probable forecast transaction 
occurs. If the transaction is no longer expected to occur, the 
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in 
the Consolidated Income Statement. 

The ineffective portion of gains and losses on cash flow 
hedging is recognised immediately in the Consolidated 
Income Statement. 

The Group’s normal operating activities expose it to a variety 
of financial risks: market risk (including commodity price risk 
and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group 
maintains strict policies to manage its financial risks as 
approved by the Board of Directors. This includes the use of 
financial derivative instruments to hedge certain of these 
exposures. 

It is Group policy that all transactions involving derivatives 
must be directly related to the underlying business activities 
of the Group. The Group does not enter into or trade financial 
instruments, including derivatives for speculative purposes. 

Impairment of financial assets  

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group has applied the 
expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. For trade receivables, contract assets and 
finance lease receivables, the simplified approach is taken, 
and the lifetime expected credit loss provided for. 

For all other in-scope financial assets at the balance sheet 
date either the lifetime expected credit loss or a twelve-
month expected credit loss is provided for, depending on the 
Group’s assessment of whether the credit risk associated 
with the specific asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition. As the Group’s financial assets are 
predominantly short term (less than twelve months), the 
impairment loss recognised is not materially different using 
either approach. 
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(a) Market risk management 

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from changes  
in market prices (commodity prices and foreign exchange 
rates). The level of market risk to which the Group is 
exposed at a point in time varies depending on market 
conditions, expectations of future price or market rate 
movements and the composition of the Group’s physical 
asset and contract portfolios. 

The Group’s objective is to reduce, where it deems 
appropriate to do so, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows 
associated with changes in foreign currency rates and 
commodity prices. It is the Group’s policy and practice to use 
derivative financial instruments to manage these exposures.  

Commodity price risk management 

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk on its future 
revenues from crude oil and natural gas. A change in these 
prices may alter the gross margin of the Group. Accordingly, 
it may enter into commodity futures and forward contracts 
to manage fluctuations in prices of anticipated revenues.  

Currency risk management 

The Group is exposed to currency risk on the following: 

(i) foreign currency denominated forecast transactions and 
firm commitments (transactional currency risk); and 

(ii) its net investments in foreign operations and foreign 
currency monetary assets and liabilities (translational 
currency risk). 

(i) Transactional currency risk 

The Group is exposed to transactional currency risk on 
revenues and costs denominated in currencies other than 
the underlying functional currency of the commercial 
operation transacting. The Group’s primary functional 
currencies are pounds sterling in the UK, Norwegian kroner 
in Norway and euros in the Netherlands. The risk is that the 
functional currency value of cash flows will vary as a result 
of movements in exchange rates. The Group manages this 
risk by hedging certain material transactional exposures 
using derivatives to fix the functional currency value of  
non-functional currency cash flows. 

(ii) Translational currency risk 

The Group is exposed to the effect of exchange rate 
fluctuations on the pound sterling value of foreign 
operations and of foreign currency monetary assets and 
liabilities, of which the primary exposure arises from NOK, 
EUR and DKK. The Group selectively manages this risk  
by replicating foreign debt using derivatives that pay cash 
flows in the currency of the respective exposure.  

In circumstances where a branch of a reporting entity  
has a different functional currency to that of the entity  
and it is materially autonomous to the entity, exchange 
differences on consolidation with the entity can be  
taken to other comprehensive income rather than  
the income statement. This is consistent with the rules 
under Financial Reporting Standard IAS21 ‘The effects  
of changes in foreign exchange rates’. 
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Sensitivity analysis 

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of a sensitivity analysis that is intended to illustrate the sensitivity of the Group’s financial position 
and performance to changes in market variables (commodity prices and foreign exchange rates) as a result of changes in the 
fair value or cash flows associated with the Group’s financial instruments. The sensitivity analysis provided discloses the effect 
on profit or loss and equity at 31 December 2019, assuming that a reasonably possible change in the relevant risk variable had 
occurred at 31 December 2019 and has been applied to the risk exposures in existence at that date to show the effects of 
reasonably possible changes in price on profit or loss and equity to the next annual reporting date. Reasonably possible 
changes in market variables used in the sensitivity analysis are based on implied volatilities, where available, or historical data 
for energy prices and foreign exchange rates.  

(i) Commodity price risk 

The impacts of reasonably possible changes in commodity prices on profit and equity, both after taxation, based on a sensitivity 
analysis are as follows: 

Energy prices Base price(i) 

2019 
Reasonably 

possible 
change in 

variable 
 %(ii) Base price(i) 

2018 
Reasonably 

possible 
change in  

variable 
 %(ii) 

UK gas (pence/therm) 40 +/–15 56 +/–13 

UK oil (US$/bbl) 60 +/–9 55 +/–19 

 

Incremental (loss)/profit 

2019 
Impact on 

profit(ii) 
£m 

2018 
Impact on 

profit(ii) 
£m 

UK energy prices (combined) – (decrease)/increase (42)/42 (86)/86 
(i) The base price represents the average forward market price over the duration of the active market curve used in the sensitivity analysis provided. 
(ii) The reasonably possible change in variable and the impact on profit are calculated using both the active and inactive market curves for all UK energy prices. 

The impact on equity of such price changes is immaterial. 

(ii) Transactional currency risk 

The majority of the Group’s transactional currency exposure derives from US dollar revenues. To cover these exposures an 
amount of $737 million (2018: $853 million) was sold or matured with spot and forward contracts during the year. A 10% 
increase on the average exchange rate for the year of GBP to USD on the USD value of those contracts would have resulted in 
a reduction to revenue of £52 million (2018: £58 million) and a 10% decrease in the value of GBP to USD von the USD value 
would have resulted in an increase to revenue of £64 million (2018: £71 million). 
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(b) Credit risk management 

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability or failure to discharge its obligations under a contract. 
The Group is exposed to credit risk on derivative financial instruments, cash and deposits with banks and Centrica group 
companies, as well as credit exposures to customers in its trading and energy sales activities. 

Treasury credit risk 

Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of derivative financial instruments. Credit risk 
from financial assets is measured by counterparty credit rating as follows: 

 

Derivative 
financial 

instruments  
with positive  

fair values 
£m 

2019 
 
 

Cash and cash  
equivalents 

£m 

Derivative  
financial 

instruments  
with positive  

fair values 
£m 

2018 
 
 

Cash and cash  
equivalents 

£m 

AA– to A–(i) – 49 – 40 

BBB+ to BBB–(ii) 10 312 2 599 

Un-rated Centrica Group companies 172 – 37 – 

 182 361 39 639 
(i) Includes restricted cash.  
(ii) BBB+ to BBB– and the unrated counterparty financial assets comprise amounts due from related parties. 

Credit risk is managed by periodically assessing the financial reliability of financial counterparties. 

Non-treasury credit risk 

The Group’s major customers are typically large companies which have strong credit ratings assigned by international credit 
rating agencies. The creditworthiness of counterparties are assessed in line with policy. 

(c) Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. To mitigate this risk, the 
Group holds adequate cash and cash equivalents and has access to a revolving unsecured credit facility. See note 22(b) for 
more information. 
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Maturity profiles 

Maturities of derivative financial instruments, provisions, borrowings and finance leases are provided in the following tables 
(all amounts are remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows): 

2019 
Due for payment 

<1 
year 

£m 

1 to 2  
years 

£m 

2 to 3 
years 

£m 

3 to 4 
years 

£m 

4 to 5 
years 

£m 

>5 
years 

£m 

Energy derivatives in a loss position that will be  
settled on a net basis (6) (1) – – – – 

Foreign exchange derivatives in a loss position that  
will be settled on a net basis (3) – – – – – 

Financial liabilities within provisions – – – – – – 

Lease liabilities (23) (23) (20) (11) (5) (4) 

 
2018 
Due for payment  

<1 
year 
£m 

1 to 2  
years 

£m 

2 to 3 
years 

£m 

3 to 4 
years 

£m 

4 to 5 
years 

£m 

>5 
years 

£m 

Energy derivatives in a loss position that will be  
settled on a net basis (45) (10) – – – – 
Foreign exchange derivatives in a loss position that  
will be settled on a net basis (5) (2) – – – – 

Financial liabilities within provisions (3) – – – – (2) 

Finance lease:       

Minimum lease payments (11) – – – – – 

Capital elements of leases (11) – – – – – 
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(a) Fair value hierarchy 

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured and held at fair value are classified into one of three categories, known 
as hierarchy levels, which are defined according to the inputs used to measure fair value as follows: 

Level 1: fair value is determined using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets 
and  liabilities; 

Level 2: fair value is determined using significant inputs that may be directly observable inputs or unobservable inputs that 
are corroborated by market data; and 

Level 3: fair value is determined using significant unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data and may 
be used with internally-developed methodologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair value. 

31 December 
Level 1 

£m 
Level 2 

£m 
Level 3  

£m 

2019 
Total 

£m 
Level 1 

£m 
Level 2 

£m 
Level 3  

£m 

2018 
Total 

£m 

Financial assets          

Derivative financial instruments:         

Energy derivatives – 172 – 172 – 37 – 37 

Foreign exchange derivatives – 10 – 10 – 2 – 2 

Total financial assets at fair value – 182 – 182 – 39 – 39 

         

Financial liabilities          

Derivative financial instruments:         

Energy derivatives – (7) – (7) – (55) – (55) 

Foreign exchange derivatives – (3) – (3) – (7) – (7) 

Total financial liabilities at fair value – (10) – (10) – (62) – (62) 
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(b) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 fair values and Group valuation 
process 

Level 2 foreign exchange derivatives comprise forward foreign exchange contracts. Forward foreign exchange contracts are fair 
valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market. 

Level 2 energy derivatives are fair valued by comparing and discounting the difference between the expected contractual cash 
flows for the relevant commodities and the quoted prices for those commodities in an active market. The average discount rate 
applied to value this type of contract during 2019 was 1% (2018: 1%) per annum. 

For Level 3 energy derivatives, the main input used by the Group pertains to deriving expected future commodity prices in 
markets that are not active as far into the future as some of the contractual terms. Fair values are then calculated by 
comparing and discounting the difference between the expected contractual cash flows and these derived future prices. 

Active period of markets Gas Oil 

UK (years)  3 3 

It should be noted that the fair values disclosed in the tables above only concern those contracts entered into which are within 
the scope of IAS 39. The Group’s actual exposure to market rates is constantly changing as the Group’s portfolio of energy 
contracts changes.  

Where the fair value at initial recognition for contracts which extend beyond the active period differs from the transaction price, 
a day-one gain or loss will arise. Such gains and losses are deferred and amortised to the Consolidated Income Statement 
based on volumes purchased or delivered over the contractual period until such time as observable market data becomes 
available (see note S1 for further detail). There are no amounts that have yet to be recognised in the Consolidated Income 
Statement relating to the differences between the transaction prices and the amounts that would have arisen had valuation 
techniques used for subsequent measurement been applied at initial recognition.  

(c) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost 

The carrying value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost are approximately equal to their 
fair value.  

Other financial instruments 

Due to their nature and/or short-term maturity, the fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
overdrafts, trade and other payables, leases, borrowings and provisions are estimated to approximate their carrying values.



S4. OTHER EQUITY 
 
 

73 
 

Spirit Energy Annual Report & Financial Statements year ended 31 December 2019 

  

 

Cash flow  
hedging  
reserve 

£m 

Foreign  
currency 

translation  
reserve 

£m 

Share-based 
payment  

reserve 
£m 

Merger  
reserve  

£m 
Total 

£m 

As at 1 January 2018 – (79) 18 1,676 1,615 

Other comprehensive income for the year:      

Exchange adjustments – 2 – – 2 

Net gains on cash flow hedges 1 – – – 1 

Acquisition of businesses – – – 65 65 

As at 31 December 2018 1 (77) 18 1,741 1,683 

Other comprehensive loss for the year:      

Exchange adjustments – (49) – – (49) 

Net losses on cash flow hedges (1) – – – (1) 

Taxation on cash flow hedges 1 – – – 1 

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of taxation – (49) – – (49) 

Share-based payment transactions – – (9) – (9) 

As at 31 December 2019 1 (126) 9 1,741 1,625 

Cash flow hedging reserve 

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises fair value movements on instruments designated as cash flow hedges under the 
requirements of IAS 39. Amounts are transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve to the Consolidated Income Statement  
or Consolidated Balance Sheet as and when the hedged item affects the Consolidated Income Statement or Consolidated 
Balance Sheet which is, for the most part, on receipt or payment of amounts denominated in foreign currencies and settlement 
of interest on debt instruments. Notes 17 and S1 provide further detail on cash flow hedging. 

Foreign currency translation reserve 

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises exchange adjustments on the translation of the Group’s foreign operations. 

Share-based payment reserve 

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not operate employee share schemes. Centrica plc, the Group's 
ultimate parent undertaking, operates a number of employee share schemes and in 2017, prior to Centrica plc's contribution 
of its exploration and production business to the Group, Centrica plc made awards under these schemes to certain employees 
of the Group. The share-based payment reserve reflects the Group's obligation to deliver Centrica plc shares to employees 
in return for services provided. 

Merger reserve 

On 8 December 2017, the Group completed the transaction to combine Centrica plc’s existing exploration and production 
business with that of Bayerngas Norge AS. The merger reserve represents the difference between the fair value and carrying 
value of assets.
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During the year, the Group entered into the following arm’s length transactions with related parties (who are not members of 
the Group, but which were related parties since they are fellow subsidiaries of the Shareholders of the Group), and had the 
following associated balances: 

 

Sale 
of goods  

and services(i) 
£m 

Purchase  
of goods 

and services(i) 
£m 

Other – net 
interest 

£m 

Amounts  
owed from(iii) 

£m 

2019 
Amounts  

owed to(iv) 
£m 

Centrica plc 5 – (1) 343 (6) 

GB Gas Holdings Limited – (8) (8) 179 (5) 

British Gas Trading Limited 681 (34) 1 49 (44) 

Centrica Energy Limited 338 – – 194 (6) 

Centrica Storage Limited – (8) – – – 

SWM Bayerische E&P Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH – – – 4 – 

 1,024 (50) (8) 769 (61) 
 

 

Sale 
of goods  

and services(i) 
£m 

Purchase  
of goods 

and services(i) 
£m 

Other – net 
interest 

£m 

Other – cash flow 
hedge reserve(ii) 

£m 

Loan  
repayments 

£m 

Amounts  
owed from(iii) 

£m 

2018 
Amounts  

owed to(iv) 
£m 

Centrica plc – (6) 4 1 (106) 562 (38) 

GB Gas Holdings Limited – (48) (7) – – 227 (17) 

British Gas Trading Limited 1,013 (26) (3) – – 91 (44) 

Centrica Energy Limited – (118) – – – 19 (39) 

Centrica Services Limited – – – – – – (2) 

Centrica Storage Limited – (13) – – – – (13) 
SWM Bayerische E&P 
Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH – – – – – 6 – 

 1,013 (211) (6) 1 (106) 905 (153) 
(i) Sale of goods and services includes recharges made to entities outside of the Group and purchase of goods and services includes recharges made by entities outside of the Group. 
(ii) Representing gains/(losses) on derivatives that are hedge accounted. 
(iii) Amounts owed from related parties includes £312 million (2018: £532 million) classified as cash equivalents; £182 million (2018: £39 million) classified as derivative financial assets; and 

£20 million (2018: £20 million) deducted from current tax liabilities, largely for Group Relief to be provided by fellow subsidiary undertakings of the Group's ultimate parent company. 
(iv) Amounts owed to related parties includes £10 million (2018: £62 million) classified as derivative financial liabilities and £nil million (2018: £11 million) classified as finance lease liabilities. 
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All amounts owed from/(owed to) related parties are unsecured. No provision against amounts receivable from related parties 
was recognised during the year through the Consolidated Income Statement. The balance of the provision at 31 December 
2019 was £nil million (2018: £nil million). 

Interest rate Maturity date £m 

Floating (cash equivalent)(i) On demand 252 

Fixed 0.84% to 0.94% (cash equivalent)  16-23 January 2020 60 

Non-interest bearing(ii) 31 March 2023 156 

Non-interest bearing On demand 230 

Non-interest bearing(iii) Legal trigger 10 

   708 
(i) The daily average of the published rates achieved by the main AAA rated market funds of HSBC Bank plc, J.P. Morgan Asset Management and Blackrock. 
(ii) Repayable quarterly through to 31 March 2023, and subject to annual revision of instalments. Quarterly instalments are fixed within each financial year but vary for each calendar year over the 

term of repayment. The balance represents the discounted amount at 1.2% from a fair value of £159 million projected net spend of identified assets as set out in the contribution agreement for the 
transaction on 8 December 2017 which combined the exploration and production businesses of Centrica plc and Bayerngas Norge A/S. 

(iii) The contribution agreement contains a mechanism whereby GBGH has the right to require that the Group transfer all or part of its interests in the Bowland licences to GBGH. In such 
circumstances, the Group is able to recover costs incurred after 1 January 2017 in connection with the Bowland licences from GBGH. Should GBGH not exercise such right or should GBGH require 
the sale of the Bowland licences to a third party, the contribution agreement contains a mechanism through which the Group also has the ability to recover costs incurred after 1 January 2017 in 
connection with the Bowland licences, save in limited circumstances. £3 million represents the value of the Group assets that would not be recovered under this mechanism. 

Key management personnel comprise members of the Board and Executive Committee. One Executive Committee member 
resigned and was replaced during the year. A total of 12 individuals remained at 31 December 2019 (2018: 12).  

Compensation paid to key management personnel is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 
2019 
£000 

2018 
 £000 

Short-term employee benefits 3,614 2,923 

 3,614 2,923 

Compensation for one executive Director and six members of the Executive Committee was borne by the Group. Compensation 
for two Directors was borne by Statwerke Munchen Group. Compensation for four Directors has been borne by Centrica plc.   

Remuneration of the highest paid Director is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 
2019 
£000 

2018 
 £000 

Short-term employee benefits 901 937 

 901 937 

The highest paid Director was not in a money purchase pension scheme and did not exercise share options or receive shares in 
the year (2018: £nil million).
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Year ended 31 December 
2019 
£000 

2018 
 £000 

Audit fee payable for the Company’s individual and Consolidated Financial Statements  543 563 

Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 525 515 

Total fees related to the audit of the parent and subsidiary entities 1,068 1,078 

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:   

 Audit-related assurance services 85 10 

 Other assurance services 25 25 

 1,178 1,113 
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(a) Subsidiary undertakings 

Below is a list of Spirit Energy Limited’s subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2019. Spirit Energy Limited holds directly or 
indirectly 100% of the ordinary shares of each subsidiary undertaking. Subsidiary undertakings which are held directly by Spirit 
Energy Limited are designated by *.  

Name of undertaking and registered address Principal activity Country or territory of incorporation 

Bayerngas Norge AS* 
Veritasveien 29, 4007 Stavanger, Norway 

Holding company Norway 

Bowland Resources (No.2) Limited 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Bowland Resources Limited 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Elswick Energy Limited 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

NSGP (Ensign) Limited 
IFC 5 St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1ST 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Jersey 

Spirit Energy Danmark ApS  
Horten Advokatpartnerselskab, Philip Heymans 
Alle 7, 2900 Hellerup, Denmark 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Denmark 

Spirit Energy Hedging Holding Limited 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Dormant company UK 

Spirit Energy Hedging Limited 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Dormant company UK 

Spirit Energy Nederland BV* 
Polarisavenue 39, 2132 JH Hoofddorp, 
Netherlands 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Netherlands 

Spirit Energy Norge AS*  
Veritasveien 29, 4007 Stavanger, Norway 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Norway 

Spirit Energy Norway AS 
Veritasveien 29, 4007 Stavanger, Norway 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Norway 

Spirit Energy North Sea Limited* 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Energy North Sea Oil Limited*  
IQ Building, 15 Justice Mill Lane, Aberdeen,  
AB11 6EQ, United Kingdom 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Energy Petroleum Danmark AS 
Veritasveien 29, 4007 Stavanger, Norway 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

Norway 
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Name of undertaking and registered address Principal activity Country or territory of incorporation 

Spirit Energy Production UK Limited*  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Energy Resources Limited* 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Energy Southern North Sea Limited  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Energy Treasury Limited*  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Finance company UK 

Spirit Energy WOS Limited  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Europe Limited  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Holding company UK 

Spirit Infrastructure BV  
Polarisavenue 39, 2132 JH Hoofddorp, 
Netherlands 

Construction, ownership and 
exploitation of infrastructure 

Netherlands 

Spirit North Sea Gas Limited*  
IQ Building, 15 Justice Mill Lane, Aberdeen, 
AB11 6EQ, United Kingdom 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

Spirit Norway Limited*  
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Investment holding company UK 

Spirit Production (Services) Limited*  
IQ Building, 15 Justice Mill Lane, Aberdeen, 
AB11 6EQ, United Kingdom 

Business services UK 

Spirit Resources (Armada) Limited* 
1st Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-
Thames, United Kingdom, TW1 4LG 

Gas and/or oil exploration and 
production 

UK 

(b) Joint arrangements 

Material joint arrangements owned by the Group that are classified as joint operations and accounted or in accordance with 
IFRS 11 (see note S1) are detailed below. This list excludes interests in fields where there is no party with overall control since 
the arrangement does not fulfil the IFRS 11 definition of joint control.  

Joint operations – fields/assets 

As at 31 December 2019 Nature of relationship Location 
Percentage holding  
in ordinary shares and net assets 

Cygnus Non-operated UK North Sea 61.25 
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As at 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Non-current assets    

Investments C 2,669 2,691 

Trade and other receivables D 69 101 

  2,738 2,792 

Current assets    

Trade and other receivables D 119 137 

Cash and cash equivalents  – 469 

  119 606 

Total assets  2,857 3,398 

Current liabilities    

Bank overdrafts, loans and other borrowings  (747) – 

Trade and other payables E (3) (3) 

  (750) (3) 

Net assets  2,107 3,395 

Equity    

Share capital F 19 19 

Share premium G 1,094 2,594 

Retained earnings  952 740 

Other equity H 42 42 

Shareholders’ equity  2,107 3,395 

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 of £888 million (2018: £260 million). 

The Financial Statements on pages 79 to 86, of which the notes on pages 81 to 86 form part, were approved and authorised by 
the Board of Directors on 27 May 2020 and were signed below on its behalf by: 

 

Chris Cox 
Director and Chief Executive Officer
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 Note 

Share  
capital 

£m 

Share  
premium 

£m 

Retained  
earnings 

£m 

Other  
equity  

£m 
Total 

£m 

06 July 2017  – – – – – 

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the period  – – (260) – (260) 

Issue of share capital F,G 19 3,594 – – 3,613 
Reduction in share premium and transfer to 
retained earnings G – (1,000) 1,000 – – 

Acquisition of business H – – – 42 42 

31 December 2018  19 2,594 740 42 3,395 

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year  – – (888) – (888) 
Reduction in share premium and transfer to 
retained earnings  G – (1,500) 1,500 – – 

Dividends paid to equity holders  – – (400) – (400) 

31 December 2019  19 1,094 952 42 2,107 

As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, no income statement or statement of comprehensive income  
is presented.  

The Board has not recommended a payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019. 

The notes on pages 81 to 86 form part of these Financial Statements. 
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(a) General information and principal 
accounting policies of the Company 

General information 

Spirit Energy Limited (‘the Company’), is the parent company 
of the Spirit Energy Group. The Company was incorporated 
on 6 July 2017. It is a private company limited by shares, 
domiciled and incorporated in the UK and registered in 
England and Wales with registration number 10854461. Its 
principal place of business and registered address is 1st 
Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines-upon-Thames, England, 
TW18 4LG.  

The Company Financial Statements are presented in pounds 
sterling with all values rounded to the nearest million 
pounds. Pounds sterling is the functional currency of the 
Company.  

Basis of preparation 

The Company Financial Statements are prepared and 
presented for the year ended 31 December 2019. 
Comparative information is presented for the long period  
of account between incorporation on 6 July 2017 and  
31 December 2018.  

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101: ‘Reduced 
disclosure framework’ (FRS 101). In preparing these 
Financial Statements, the Company applies the recognition, 
measurement and disclosure requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 
(Adopted IFRSs) but makes amendments where necessary 
to comply with Companies Act 2006 and sets out below 
where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has 
been taken.  

In these Financial Statements, the Company has applied the 
exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the 
following disclosures:  

 the requirements of IAS 7: ‘Statement of cash flows’;  

 the statement of compliance with Adopted IFRSs;  

 the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;  

 the prior year reconciliation in the number of shares 
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 
for share capital;  

 disclosures in respect of related-party transactions with 
wholly-owned subsidiaries in a group;  

 disclosures in respect of the compensation of key 
management personnel; and  

 disclosures in respect of capital management.  

Measurement convention 

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared  
on the historical cost basis. The carrying costs are 
approximately equal to their fair value. 

Going concern 

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis, as described in the Directors’ report and 
note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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Critical accounting judgements 

The critical accounting judgements are set out in note 3 of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements. The key accounting 
judgement of the Company is the carrying value of its 
investments in subsidiary undertakings and receivables from 
these undertakings. During the year, the Company reviewed 
the carrying value of its investments through its impairment 
review process as described below and recorded an 
impairment provision of £889 million (2018: £238 million)  
as described in note C below.  

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are set out in 
note 3 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. The areas 
applicable to the Company are the impairment of 
investments and Brexit. 

Principal accounting policies 

The accounting policies set out below have, unless 
otherwise stated, been applied consistently to the current 
year and prior period presented in these Financial 
Statements. 

Foreign currencies 

The Company’s functional and presentational currency is 
pounds sterling. Transactions in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated into pounds sterling at 
closing rates of exchange. Exchange differences on 
monetary assets and liabilities are taken to the Income 
Statement. 

Investments 

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries’ shares are held  
at cost in accordance with IAS 27: ‘Separate financial 
statements’, less any provision for impairment as necessary 
for any subsequent investments. 

Impairment 

The carrying values of investments in subsidiary 
undertakings are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated.  

The recoverable amount of an investment in a subsidiary 
undertaking is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. Receivables from related parties 
are compared to their recoverable amount, which is also 
assessed using the same estimated discounted future cash 
flow for each undertaking as described above.  

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount  
of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

(b) Employees and Directors 

Key management personnel are considered to be the 
Directors and the Secretary of the Company. The Company 
had no employees during the year (2018: none). None of  
the key management personnel received any remuneration 
for their services as key management personnel of  
the Company and are not employed by the Company 
(2018: none). 
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(c) Investment in subsidiaries 

 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Cost   

As at 01 January 2019/06 July 2017 2,929 – 

Additions 867 2,929 

At 31 December  3,796 2,929 
 
 2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Accumulated impairment   

At 01 January 2019/06 July 2017 (238) – 

Impairment provision (889) (238) 

At 31 December (1,127) (238) 
 
 2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Net book value   

At 01 January 2019/06 July 2017 2,691 – 

At 31 December  2,669 2,691 

On 29 September and 31 October 2017, GB Gas Holdings Limited (GBGH), a fellow subsidiary of Centrica plc, contributed the 
entire share capital of the following entities to the Company in exchange for Class A ordinary shares with a value of £633 
million and Class B ordinary shares with a value of £1,482 million: Spirit Energy North Sea Limited, Spirit Energy North Sea Oil 
Limited, Spirit Energy Production UK Limited, Spirit Energy Resources Limited, Spirit Energy Treasury Limited, Spirit North Sea 
Gas Limited, Spirit Production (Services) Limited, Spirit Energy Nederland B.V., Spirit Resources (Armada) Limited, Spirit 
Energy Norge AS and Spirit Norway Limited then trading as Spirit Energy NUF. 

Immediately following the above contribution, SWM Bayerische E&P Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH contributed the entire 
share capital of Bayerngas Norge AS, together with certain other receivables, to the Company in exchange for a promissory 
note valued at £796 million, of which £541 million was attributable to the value of Bayerngas Norge AS.  

On 11 December 2017, the Company subscribed for a further 2.7 billion ordinary shares in Spirit Norway Limited for cash 
consideration of £242 million. 

On 12 December 2017, the Company subscribed for further shares in Bayerngas Norge AS for cash consideration of 
£31 million, bringing its total investment in Bayerngas Norge AS to £572 million. 

In the period, the Company made cash investments of £132 million in North Sea Gas Limited, £6 million in Spirit Energy 
Nederland BV, £655 million in Spirit Energy Resources Limited and £74 million in Spirit Production Services Limited. 

 



NOTES TO THE COMPANY  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 
 

84 
 

Spirit Energy Annual Report & Financial Statements year ended 31 December 2019 

  

Impairment provision 

In December, the Company made an impairment provision against its following subsidiary investments: 

 Spirit Energy Production UK Limited £15 million (2018: £29 million);  

 Spirit North Sea Gas Limited £391 million (2018: £8 million);  

 Spirit Energy Nederland B.V. £nil million (2018: £2 million);  

 Spirit Resources (Armada) Limited £7 million (2018: £3 million); 

 Spirit Norway Limited £nil million (2018: £111 million); 

 Bayerngas Norge AS £411 million (2018: £85 million); and 

 Spirit Production (Services) Limited £65 million (2018: £nil million). 

The impairments were recognised to align the carrying value of the investment to its estimated recoverable amount.  
The principal drivers for investment impairments were the asset impairments driven primarily by revised commodity prices,  
a recapitalisation programme undertaken in the year, incremental trading losses and adverse foreign exchange movements. 

(d) Trade and other receivables 

As at 31 December Note 
Current  

£m 

2019 
Non-current  

£m 
Current  

£m 

2018 
Non-current  

£m 

Financial assets:      

Related-party receivables I 114 69 132 101 

Other receivables  5 – 5 – 

  119 69 137 101 

(e) Trade and other payables 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Amounts owed to parent undertaking (3) (3) 
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(f) Share capital 

Allotted and fully paid share capital of the Company: 

As at 31 December 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

296,056,457 A class ordinary shares of 1 pence each (2018: 296,056,457) 3 3 

658,964,372 B class ordinary shares of 1 pence each (2018: 658,964,372) 6 6 

1 deferred share of £1 (2018: 1) – – 

955,020,829 preference shares of 1 pence each (2018: 955,020,829) 10 10 

 19 19 

The A and B class ordinary shares have attached to them full voting, dividend (including the right to special dividends in  
the case of B class ordinary shares) and capital distribution (including winding up) rights. They do not confer any rights  
of redemption. 

Special dividends are required to be declared in certain circumstances, subject to the availability of sufficient distributable 
reserves. The special dividends are therefore not discretionary and as such, are accounted for as a financial liability when  
the event triggering the special dividend occurs. 

The deferred share does not have any right to a dividend or distribution of profits of the Company on winding up. The holder is 
entitled to repayment of the amount paid up after repayment of the capital paid up on the A ordinary and B ordinary shares. 
The deferred share does not attach any rights to receive notice of, attend, speak or vote at a general meeting or on any written 
resolution of the Company.  

The preference shares have attached to them voting (only in respect of variation or abrogation of the rights attaching to them), 
dividend (in priority to ordinary Shareholders, save for special dividends) and capital distribution (including on winding up and in 
such case in priority to ordinary Shareholders) rights. The shares are redeemable (in whole or in part) at the Company’s option 
and on redemption, entitle the holder to a specified payment.  

The Shareholder Agreements govern further rights to redeem the preference shares and also circumstances when conversion 
of preference shares can occur, but these are all at the discretion of the Company. 

The preference share dividends are non-cumulative and are fixed at 5.5% per annum with a floating element of up to 1.5% per 
annum based on the Company’s post-tax profits. The overall dividend is only payable at the discretion of the Directors of the 
Company and subject to having sufficient distributable reserves. The preference shares are deemed to be equity instruments. 

(g) Share premium 

In December 2019, by special resolution of the Board of Directors and pursuant to Companies Act sections 641and 642,  
the Company reduced its share premium account by £1,500 million (2018: £1,000 million) and transferred the resulting 
distributable reserves to retained earnings. 
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(h) Other equity 

During the period ended 31 December 2018, a redetermination was made in respect of the provisional fair values of certain 
assets and liabilities which had been acquired from Bayerngas Norge AS. The finalised acquisition discussions with Centrica 
and Bayerngas Norge AS resulted in an increase in the amounts due from Centrica of £25 million and amounts payable to 
Bayerngas Norge AS of £2 million. The balance sheet also included a provision for uncertain tax provisions from the acquired 
Bayerngas Group business; the Company has been able to claim indemnities under the tax deed of £4 million in respect of this 
uncertain tax provision which is due from Bayerngas Norge AS. Additionally, the Company has been indemnified by Centrica 
and Bayerngas Norge AS in respect of legal claims which have been settled during the period ended 31 December 2018 in the 
value of £15 million. The cumulative impact of the redetermination was recognised in other equity in the prior period; no further 
adjustments have been recognised in other equity during 31 December 2019.  

(i) Related-party transactions 

During the year, the Company entered into the arm’s length transactions set out below with related parties who are fellow 
subsidiaries of the ultimate parent undertaking and had the following associated balances: 

As at 31 December 

Amounts  
owed from 

£m 

2019 
Amounts  

owed to 
£m 

Amounts  
owed from 

£m 

2018 
Amounts  

owed to 
£m 

GB Gas Holdings Limited 179 (3) 227 (3) 

SWM Bayerische E&P Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH 4 – 6 – 

Spirit Energy Treasury Limited(i) – (747) 469 – 
 

183 (750) 702 (3) 
(i) Disclosed as bank overdrafts, loans and other borrowings/cash and cash equivalents.  

All amounts owed from related parties are non-interest bearing and are not past due and no provisions for credit losses have 
been taken. Terms relating to amounts receivable from GB Gas Holdings Limited of £156 million and £10 million are described 
in note S5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, in footnotes (ii) and (iii), respectively. The remaining amounts owed from 
related parties of £17 million and amounts owed to related parties are payable on demand. During the year, all amounts owed 
to related parties were non-interest bearing, however, an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3% will be applied to amounts owing to 
Spirit Energy Treasury Limited for periods after 2019. 

During the year, the Company recognised in its Income Statement an expense of £5 million (2018: £30 million) for a reduction 
in deferred consideration and income of £6 million (2018: £7 million) for transactions with GB Gas Holdings Limited.
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The Group’s estimates of reserves of gas and liquids are reviewed as part of the full-year reporting process and updated 
accordingly. 

A number of factors affect the volumes of gas and liquids reserves, including the available reservoir data, commodity prices 
and future costs. Due to the inherent uncertainties and the limited nature of reservoir data, estimates of reserves are subject  
to change as additional information becomes available.  

The Group discloses 2P gas and liquids reserves, representing the central estimate of future hydrocarbon recovery. Reserves 
for Spirit Energy operated fields are estimated by in-house technical teams composed of geoscientists and reservoir engineers. 
Reserves for non-operated fields are estimated by the operator but are subject to internal review and challenge. 

As part of the internal control process related to reserves estimation, an assessment of the reserves, including the application 
of the reserves definitions is undertaken by an independent technical auditor. An annual reserves assessment has been carried 
out by Gaffney, Cline & Associates for the Group’s global reserves. Reserves are estimated in accordance with a formal policy 
and procedure standard. 

The Group has estimated 2P gas and liquids reserves in Europe.  

The principal fields in Europe are Kvitebjørn, Statfjord, Nova, Ivar Aasen, Chiswick, Cygnus and Morecambe. The reserves 
estimates are reported according to the guidelines set by the Petroleum Resources Management System, which is sponsored 
by the following organisations: 

 Society of Petroleum Engineers;  

 American Association of Petroleum Geologists; 

 World Petroleum Council; 

 Society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers; and 

 Society of Exploration Geophysicists. 

Estimated net 2P reserves of gas Billion cubic feet 

1 January 2019 1,011 

Revisions of previous estimates(i) 185 

Disposals of reserves in place(ii) (20) 

Production(iii) (186) 

31 December 2019 990 
 

Estimated net 2P reserves of liquids(v) Million barrels 

1 January 2019 101 

Revisions of previous estimates(i) 34 

Disposals of reserves in place(ii) (1) 

Production(iii) (14) 

31 December 2019 120 
 

Estimated net 2P reserves  
Million barrels of 

oil equivalent 

31 December 2019(iv) 284 
(i) Revision of previous estimates include those associated with Statfjord, Kvitebjørn, Trym, Chiswick, Cygnus, York and South Morecambe areas. 
(ii) Reflects the disposal of non-operated interests in the Valemon area. 
(iii) Represents total sales volumes of gas and oil produced from the Group’s reserves. 
(iv) Includes the total of estimated gas and liquids reserves at 31 December 2019 in million barrels of oil equivalent. 
(v) Liquid reserves include oil, condensate and natural gas liquids. 
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These consolidated Financial Statements include a number of non-GAAP measures. These measures are chosen as they 
provide additional useful information on business performance and underlying trends. They are also used to measure the 
Group’s performance against its strategic financial framework. They are not, however, defined terms under IFRS and may not 
be comparable with similarly titled measures reported by other companies. Where possible they have been reconciled to the 
statutory equivalents from the primary statements (Consolidated Income Statement (I/S), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
(C/F)) or the notes to the Financial Statements. 

(a) Adjusted operating profit 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Adjusted operating profit   207  426  

Exceptional items I/S (516) 91  

Unrealised re-measurement of energy contracts 6(b) 194  (5) 

Operating (loss)/profit I/S (115) 512  

(b) Adjusted profit after tax 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Adjusted profit after tax   37  89  

Exceptional items I/S (516) 91  

Unrealised re-measurement of energy contracts 6(b) 194  (5) 

Tax on exceptional items and unrealised re-measurements of energy contracts 9(a) 14  16  

(Loss)/profit for the year I/S (271) 191  

(c) Adjusted operating cash flow 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Adjusted operating cash flow   548  913  

Payments relating to exceptional charges C/F (3) (19) 

Net cash from operating activities C/F 545  894  

(d) Free cash flow 

Year ended 31 December Note 
2019 

£m 
2018 

£m 

Adjusted operating cash flow  548  913  

Proceeds from the sale of assets C/F 33  1  

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets C/F (470) (470) 

Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets C/F 6  – 

Free cash flow   117  444  
 




